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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”), it is my great pleasure to report to
the shareholders the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group continued to focus
on the development and innovation of our software platform products
and services including patented sever based technology, the provision
of communications software platform and software related services. The
Group tapped into the mobile gaming industry by the acquisition of 60%
equity interest in First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries in late
2016. The mobile gaming business made positive progress and leaded to
increase in the Group’s revenue in 2017. Meanwhile, the money lending
business had steady development and became one of main sources for
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Driven by growth of revenue from mobile gaming business acquired on
25 October 2016, our annual revenue increased from HK$33,938,000 in
2016 to HK$64,464,000 in 2017. The Group will continue to strengthen
our mobile game related products and services in order to deliver an
outstanding performance in the mobile gaming business. Revenue of
the money lending business in 2017 had remained flat over that of
2016. The Group will continue to develop and expand its money lending
business with sound and flexible business strategies to maintain our
market competitiveness. Affected by slight competition in the market, our
revenue from provision of software platform recorded a certain level of
year-on-year decrease compared to the last year.

PROSPECT

The Group strives to build on its strength in developing information
technology related products and digital innovations to local and untapped
markets worldwide. In 2018, the Group will continue to devote its
resources on emerging technologies and proactively expand our digital
and innovation solution services to capitalise future opportunities in the
market.

Looking ahead, the group will continue to seek potential investment
opportunities that can create synergies to our existing business
segments, at the same time bringing growth and additional value to the
shareholders of the company.
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APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
give my sincere gratitude to my fellow Directors and all the staff who have
contributed their time, efforts and supports to the Group.

Chan Wai Kit
Deputy Chairman

23 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue from
continuing operations of approximately HK$64,464,000 as compared
to that of approximately HK$33,938,000 for the same financial year
in 2016. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the growth of the
Mobile Gaming Business which commenced on 25 October 2016 by
the acquisition of 60% equity interest in First Surplus Investments Ltd.
(“Acquisition of FS”) and its subsidiaries (together, “FS Group”). The
mobile gaming income had grown from approximately HK$111,000 in
2016 to approximately HK$35,144,000 in 2017.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$48,823,000 as compared with that of approximately HK$37,986,000
in 2016. The increase in loss was mainly attributable to the net effect of (i)
an increase of approximately HK$3,764,000 in the recognition of changes
in fair value of consideration payable for business combination relating
to the acquisition of 60% equity interest in First Surplus Investments
Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Acquisition of FS Group”) as compared
to the previous year; (ii) an increase of approximately HK$16,578,000
in the recognition of changes in fair value of contingent consideration
assets for business combination relating to the Acquisition of FS Group
as compared to the previous year; (iii) an increase of approximately
HK$2,007,000 in finance costs as a result of interest expenses on the
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$28,000,000 granted in November
2016; (iv) the absence of the loss of approximately HK$8,237,000 from
the discontinued operation relating to a disposal of the entire equity
interest of Native Hope Limited and its subsidiaries completed on 30
June 2016; and (v) the improvement of the operation resulted from the
favourable performance of the Mobile Gaming Business acquired on 25
October 2016.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group engaged in
(i) developing and marketing of the patented server based technology
and the provision of communications software platform, software related
services and the custom-made software development services, (the
“Software Platform”); (ii) money lending business (the “Money Lending
Business”) and (iii) the mobile data solutions and mobile game related
services (the “Mobile Gaming Business”).

Software Platform

The segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$14,561,000 (2016: the segment revenue of
approximately HK$19,689,000). To keep up with the ever-changing
IT environment, the Group closely monitors the industry trend and
continuously upgrades its products.

Money Lending Business

On 22 October 2015, the Group commenced its Money Lending Business
through Aurum Pacific Finance Limited (“APF"”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was granted a money lenders license
by the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group adopted the revised money lending policy and procedure
manual which provide guidelines on the handling and/or monitoring of
money lending procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of the Hong Kong). The Money Lending
Business had steady development and became one of the sources
for the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
interest income for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$14,759,000 (2016: the interest income of
approximately HK$14,138,000).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 21 October 2016,
25 October 2016 and 23 October 2017, APF has advanced a loan of
HK$35 million (“Loan”) to Honghu Capital Co. Limited (“Borrower”)
which together with interest thereon shall be repaid on 20 October
2017. As at the close of business on 20 October 2017, the final interest
component payment of HK$1,750,000 was paid. On 29 December
2017, the Group entered into the supplemental agreement with the
Borrower to which (i) the Borrower had repaid part of the Loan in sum of
HK$8,000,000 to the Lender; and (ii) APF agreed to extend the repayment
date for the balance of the Loan to 19 October 2018. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 October 2016, 25
October 2016, 23 October 2017 and 29 December 2017.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Mobile Gaming Business

Benefiting from the Acquisition of FS Group in late 2016, the Group could
tap into the mobile online game industry and capture the opportunities in
the mobile online game and related solution industry.

As a mobile game developer with strong self-developed capabilities in
games, the FS Group is engaged in the development of mobile games to
players around the world. The FS Group has also licensed our games or
related intellectual properties to various well-established game operators
as our licensed operations with the exclusive and/or non-exclusive right
to operate, publish and distribute specific games within an agreed period
and designated territories. To further enhance the competitiveness,
apart from mobile games, the FS Group has also provided the innovative
solution services to the customers. The mobile gaming income for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$35,144,000
(2016: the mobile gaming income of approximately HK$111,000).

OUTLOOK

We intend to continue taking efforts in developing and upgrading our
products and services with a generic growth of the business in order to
broaden our income sources. The Group will continue to seek potential
investment opportunities that can create synergies to our existing
business segments, at the same time bringing growth and additional
value to the shareholders of the Company.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group’s main business operations and investments are in Hong Kong
and the Netherlands. At 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$42,389,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$11,500,000). Most of the cash and bank balances are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate
movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the exchange
risk.
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Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2017, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$405,730,000 (31 December 2016: HK$451,871,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$123,350,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$153,427,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total
liabilities over total assets, was 30.4% (31 December 2016: 34.0%) and
the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current liabilities,
was 1.32 (31 December 2016: 25.1). The Directors will continue to take
measures to further improve the liquidity and gearing position of the
Group.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04
each, of which 1,088,640,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully
paid.

Placing of new shares under refreshed general mandate

On 16 December 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with KGI Asia Limited as placing agent (“KGI"), pursuant to which
KGI would place, on a best effort basis, to independent placees up to
181,440,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each of the Company (the
“Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.16 per Placing Share (the “Placing”).

The completion of the Placing took place on 10 January 2017. An
aggregate of 181,440,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 12 October 2016. The aggregate
nominal value of the Placing Shares was HK$7,257,600. The net proceeds
from the Placing were approximately HK$28,270,000 and the net issue
price was approximately HK$0.1558 per Placing Share. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$11,500,000 were used for Money Lending Business
and the remaining proceeds were used for general working capital.
Details of the Placing are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
16 December 2016 and 10 January 2017.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange
exposure.
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Material Risk Factors
Details of the Group’s financial risk and analysis are set out in note 28(a)
to 28(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2017, the land and buildings of the Group at carrying
amount of approximately HK$42,955,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$47,079,000) was pledged to secure interest-bearing borrowings of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Company has
issued a corporate guarantee in respect of a loan made by a finance
company to a subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two subsidiaries of the
Company leased two motor vehicles under finance leases at 3.5% — 4.8%
per annum for a term of three to five years. The Company has issued
corporate guarantee in respect of the finance leases with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,170,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: HK$Nil). Details of the corporate guarantee are setting
out in note 36(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Upon the completion of acquisition of FS Group on 25 October, 2016, the
Company has issued a corporate guarantee in respect of the promissory
note issued by a subsidiary of the Company. Details of the acquisition are
setting out in note 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant

Investment

On 30 March 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with the
vendor pursuant to which a subsidiary of the Company as a purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire from the vendor the entire issued share
capital of Stars Ventures Limited (”Stars Ventures”) at the consideration
of HK$32,400,000. The principal activities of Stars Ventures and its
subsidiaries are investment holding while its associates are principally
engaged in construction and management of fibre optic internet
networks in the Netherlands. The acquisition was completed on 13
April 2017. Details of the completion of acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 30 March 2017 and 13 April
2017.
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Apart from those disclosed in the sections headed “Material Acquisition,
Disposal and Significant Investment” in this report, the Group did not
have any other material acquisition, disposal and significant investment
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Profit Guarantee Fulfilment

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated on 8 August 2016 in
respect of the Acquisition of FS Group, the profit guarantee is granted to
the Group that the audited consolidated profit after taxation of FS Group
of not less than HK$14,200,000 for twelve full months immediately
following completion of the Acquisition of FS Group has been achieved.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 95 employees
(as at 31 December 2016: 108 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) were approximately
HK$29,947,000 (2016: approximately HK$25,265,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Group’s remuneration policy is revised
periodically and determined by reference to market terms, company
performance, individual qualifications and performance, and in
accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective jurisdiction
where the employees are employed.

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option
Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March
2013.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the
Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2016
and the Company’s circular dated 13 April 2016.

As at 31 December 2017 and up to date of this report, the Company had
not granted any options and no outstanding options under the Share
Option Scheme. Details please refer to the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in the Report of the Directors in this report.

Events after the Reporting Period
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group does not have other
significant events after the reporting period.
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The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and
quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for
the sake of maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
15 of the Rules (the “GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 except
the CG Code provision A2.1 and A6.7.

Under the CG Code provision A2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title
of Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") since the resignation of the former
CEO, Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence of the Company on 8 October 2015.
Mr. Chan Wai Kit, the deputy chairman of the Company, also assumes
the duties of the CEO during the year under review. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
individual provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies.

Under the CG Code provision A6.7, independent directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Dr. Lee Nim Wai, who resigned on 15 January 2018, did
not attend the annual general meeting of the Company due to other
work commitments. The Company will strengthen its general meeting
planning process, by giving all directors sufficient time to arrange their
work in advance and providing any necessary support for their presence
and participation in the meeting, so as to facilitate all directors attending
the Company’s future general meetings.

Below are the major corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company with specific reference to the CG Code.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for leading and controlling
the Company, overseeing as well as the supervision of its business,
approval of strategic plans and monitoring the Company’s performance.
The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to the executive directors
and senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprise six Directors, of which
three are executive Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Kit, Mr. Chan Kwun Chung
and Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace; and three are independent non-
executive Directors (the "INED(s)”), Mr. Lenug Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin
Fung, Eric and Mr. Pang Siu Yin. There is no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in pages 60 to 63 under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors and
INEDs so that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company
and that the current board size is adequate for its present operations.
Each Director keeps abreast of his/her responsibility as the Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active anticipation of a majority of Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. There were 23 board meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Exg

Exe((E5g ) AREEREEAR
EREBEHRBEE - ﬁ R RS 1 Ef%J&ﬁ*A
ARBZER - EFEHAFLETFERH
HTEFASREREAR  YRBETEE
EHHRESEHE-

RARERH  EFEmREFEAK 25
ZERTEERERLEE  RELEERTE
AL )Si—%ﬁ_L?FiﬂfTi?(H%_L?F#ﬂﬂ
BEx]) DARXERE EBREXERE
KEBEE - EFHWEIIE - #755 - Kiksk
HMEXR MABEE - EEEEERFNE60
E3A [EERSRERABME]—& -

§$A$ﬁﬁ§$&ﬁ2#ﬁﬁ§$25%ﬁ
CFEESEBBABIITERUNEREL
ﬁiﬂ%

EEeREFHARMTEZIRERER - IS
ABARRARRENGZRAR  BEWETREE
REFZARME MEFSRARBITENAEN
ARARBREEMS - SEFHHBETES
FREAERE - )Tﬁﬁﬁ¢$ BIEETR - £
BB RBR&EHER

TEERTATARXEAIEHRE BFE
L BRTORNEHESTESH - KROEBFET
—R - WHAREHESHAEHTRBRAME
TR AEHRREH o

EEeNETHRTERTEA T ERETE
G Uil AN EE SRR EE R
BRE -HE_T—+tF+=-A=1+—HLHF
EAHXBIT2INEETSLHE -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017

15



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the year BREELEH=—_"—+tF+-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2017: HFEERTZESTEERER

Attendance/eligible to attend

HERESERERERE
Board meeting General meeting
ESEEE BRRAE

Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit' 22/23 11
BRIZEET AT
Ms. Wong Chi Yan? 16/17 11
BEBR T
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah? 4/4 N/A 38 A
R ELES
Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan® 3/4 N/A "3 B
HER A
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung® 19/19 171
[Pl e
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun® 22/23 171
BT fe S A
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric’ 21/23 11
eieded iy
Dr. Lee Nim Wai® 12/23 01
FRBE LS
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Notes:

s fsbe S/
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Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as a Co-Chairman on 7 May 2015 and he
has been re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman and Chairman to deputy
Chairman with effect from 8 October 2015 and 16 October 2015 respectively.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2015
and resigned as company secretary and executive Director on 18 January 2016 and
12 October 2017 respectively.

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah has been appointed as an executive Director and company
secretary on 23 February 2016 and resigned as company secretary and executive
Director on 3 August 2016 and 20 March 2017 respectively.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan has been appointed as an executive Director on 2 March
2016 and resigned on 20 March 2017.

Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as an executive Director on 20 March
2017.

Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016 and resigned on 15 January 2018.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman (“Chairman”) is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its
agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other directors
for inclusion in the agenda while the CEQ is responsible for the day-to-day

management of the Group's business.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the Co-Chairman
on 7 May 2015 and subsequent became a sole Chairman from 8 October

2015

to 15 October 2015 after the resignation of Dr. Lan Hong Tsung,

David on 8 October 2015. Mr. Chan has been re-designated as a deputy
Chairman on 16 October 2015.

Mt

REREER _T-—RAFAALtAEZERBEE
B YRR _F-—AF+ANAR=ZZ—RF+
AT AAmBEIRREATIREERBTFAETRE
ERE

EERRTR T -AFREA-TLHEEEEARH
TEERAIN - E-—R"F-A+N\BER-E—L
F+AT_ERERAWERNATES -

WEELAER-_ZE—A"F_AZT=ZARZEIARH
TEERARWE  YDFR_T-—RFNA=
ARZE—tF=A-tHBERARWERNTE
=

HEBEER TR FZ A AEZTANTE
ERR=_TE—tF=A=-+HEHTE

RELEER-_E—LF=A =T ABEERNT
BE%-

RXBEEER_E—RNF_AT=BEZETARB
STIFITESE ©

EREAER T ARF=AAREERBIUHF
WITESE -

FORBAEN T~ EZ A+ AREEABY
FRTEERR-F—\F—A+ERRHE -

EFERITHAR

IR(EFEDARBIES Y  URREFE
RETRENAEZFETEAZNE 1%
BHOEFHRZUMARRZANEE -

TRESBEAKEXBZATER -

REGEE(TREEDR-_E—AFAALHEEE
RERBFELE  YEEBEFLIRN _T—HF+
ANBEEE  RZT—RE+AN\BE=ZT—H
FTATHAKRME—IE - REEAR-ZT—HF
TAT A BERERBIERE -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017

17



18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\\:/‘-[\-\\ =+
TRXER/RBRE

There is no CEO of the Company after the resignation of Mr. Mo Wai
Ming, Lawrence on 8 October 2015. The deputy Chairman temporarily
took up the role as CEO of the Company for a transitional period with a
view to identifying a suitable candidate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

There is currently no non-executive director (“NED"”) during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied at all times with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and
5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules that at least three INEDs sit in the Board
(more than half of the Board members) and at least one of them has
appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Each INED has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, all the INEDs have entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years,
unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served
by either party on the other. The CG Code provision A.4.1 has been
complied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing the risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions
of the senior management. Nomination Committee assists the Board
in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size and
composition of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on
appointment of directors. Each of the Committees is established with
defined written terms of reference which are available on the Company’s
website and the GEM website.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and determining
the specific remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market terms, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company
and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid to each Director
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2017 by band is set out as follows:

FEEE(ER)

Remuneration band (in HK$)
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Number of individuals

A¥

Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000
As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun,
Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Chun.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2017. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

FNZ BB BFRIBITREHE - F B
ZEERBE_T—tFT_-_A=1T—HIF
BEARBIT-REFE - SKBZHFERRET L0

T
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
EEEREERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)’ 171
RS E(EE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric? 171
B RE?
Dr. Lee Nim Wai? 0/1
FoRBE
Executive Director
HITES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit 171
BRIEGE ST &
Notes: Bt -
1. Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive 1. RNBAERZS—R"F_AZT=BRZIALRE
Director on 23 February 2016. SLIEHITESE o
2. Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive 2. ERBEAENR T - R"F-A-ABZEAB Kk
Director on 2 March 2016. WITES -
3. Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 3. FRBRBEN_T—ARF=ZA+ BEZTABL
16 March 2016 and resigned on 15 January 2018. FRTEERR =T N\F—AT+HABT -
Summary of works THEBR

During the year 2017, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages of the all the Directors and the senior
management and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the newly appointed executive Directors in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of directors and
making recommendations to the Board on such appointments.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun,
Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by the INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year
for the review of the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board. In addition, the Nomination
Committee also meets as it is required to consider nomination related
matters. One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December
2017. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Executive Director
HITES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit VAl
RIEAEE
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Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

2. Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

3. Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016 and resigned on 15 January 2018.

Summary of works

During the year 2017, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Board
diversity policy, the structure, size and composition of the Board and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s strategy and also reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the newly
appointed executive Director in accordance with the Nomination
Committee’s written terms of reference.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 1 September 2013. A summary of this policy, together with the
measurable objectives set for implementing this policy, and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognized and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a numbers
of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered with the objective
criteria, having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’'s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of
services, professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board
Diversity Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment and removal of external auditor, to evaluate
the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks, to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and other financial reporting matters and ensure the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements, to
monitor compliance with statutory and listing requirements and to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. At least one member has an
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and
annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and
senior executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of
the Audit Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group’s
external auditor and the management.
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Pang Siu
Yin. The Audit Committee is chaired by the Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year.
Five meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2017. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

RARERH  BERZEER=RBIIFNT
EEEK  KEDRIRRXELEE ERER
ERERERE - RNEREREETEZZES
ERE e

ERZEEHEBFRLBTNRER - BE
TEtHF+ A=+ -BUIFERERTH
REH » BFRBZHFEBREIIMT

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE,
SEREERH
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)’ 5/5
RS E(EE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric? 5/5
EREE A
Dr. Lee Nim Wai? 4/5

FRRELe
Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

2. Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

3. Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016 and resigned on 15 January 2018.
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Summary of works

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee reviewed
the quarterly, interim and annual results; made recommendations to the
Board on the terms of engagement of the external auditors; and reviewed
the system of risk management and internal control on an ongoing basis,
and its other duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written
terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG
Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Under its amended terms of reference, dated 7 January 2016,
the Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group's preliminary
quarterly results, interim results and annual financial statements and
to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to
review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system, internal audit and risk management matters and to review the
Group's financial and accounting policies.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the policies of
the corporate governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

External Auditor’'s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the
audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit
service (including professional advice on financing activities, taxation and
acquisition) for the year ended 31 December 2017 provided by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited was HK$966,000 and HK$283,000 respectively.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The internal control system includes safeguard of the
interest of shareholders and the Group's assets. It has been an important
duty of the Board to conduct a review of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at any
time necessary. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions.

The Group has engaged ALE Global Services Limited as an independent
internal control review advisor to conduct the annual review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system. Review of the Group’s
internal controls covering major operational, financial and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different systems has
been performed on a systematic rotational basis on the risk assessments
of the operations and controls. No major issues on the internal control
system have been identified during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company where necessary. For the year 2017, each of the Directors
has participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or studying materials relevant to director’s duties and
responsibility. Their training records have been provided to the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors have received the

following trainings:

BHE_Z—+F+_A=+T—RHLFE E=
BN T -

Training on corporate governance,
regulatory development and other
relevant topics
ThEER EEBRR

H i 16 B R E Y 3% 5
Studying Attending
materials Seminar
mEEH o R R
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit' v v
PRIZEES AT
Ms. Wong Chi Yan? v v/
mERBLZL?
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah? v -
B LA
Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan* v -
R E D ST A
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung® v 4
PR R ST AE S
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun® v -
BT fe 5 A
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric’ v -
EREERAET
Dr. Lee Nim Wai® v =
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Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as a Co-Chairman on 7 May 2015 and he
has been re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman and Chairman to deputy
Chairman with effect from 8 October 2015 and 16 October 2015 respectively.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2015
and resigned as company secretary and executive Director on 18 January 2016 and
12 October 2017 respectively.

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah has been appointed as an executive Director and company
secretary on 23 February 2016 and resigned as company secretary and executive
Director on 3 August 2016 and 20 March 2017 respectively.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan has been appointed as an executive Director on 2 March

2016 and resigned on 20 March 2017.

Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as an executive Director on 20 March
2017.

Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016 and resigned on 15 January 2018.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Leung Ching Man (“Ms. Leung”), is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
She is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the
relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the induction and professional
development of directors. During the year under review, Ms. Leung
has attended relevant professional seminars to update her skills and
knowledge. She met the training requirement set out in rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had adopted a
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which
has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the related party transactions,
if any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice
of annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer
guestions on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s
activities is provided in its annual report, interim report and quarterly
reports which are sent to shareholders and investors. The Company’s
announcements, press releases and publications are published and are
also available on the GEM website and on the Company’s website at
www.aurumpacific.com.hk.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, there has not been any change

in the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of

the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the GEM website.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

()

(i)

(iii)

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the “Extraordinary
General Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors
or the secretary for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary
General Meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the
Company’s Hong Kong head office at 21/F., Henan Building,
90 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make
enquiries with the Board directly at the general meetings.

Make proposals at general meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”) (as amended from time to time), the Shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting follow the procedures as set out
above.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HEBRERRS

PREAMBLE

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) stringently adhere to their
environmental and social responsibilities.

The Group developed its sustainability strategy with aims to create
sustainable values to its stakeholders, and to continue to lower
the Group’s impact on the environment. To carry out the Group’s
sustainability strategy from top to bottom, the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) of the Company has ultimate responsibility for
ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") policies. The Board established dedicated
teams to manage ESG issues within each business division of the
Group. Designated staff was assigned to enforce and supervise
the implementation of the relevant ESG policies. The Group is
also committed to constantly reviewing and adjusting the Group'’s
sustainability policies to satisfy the ever-changing needs of its
stakeholders. Details of its management approach in both the
environmental and social aspect can be found throughout different
sections of this ESG report. The Group believes sustainability is
essential to the development of the Group’s overall long-term
success.

The Group is pleased to present this ESG report to demonstrate
the Group's approach and performance in terms of sustainable
development for the year ended 31 December 2017. This ESG
report is prepared in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide as
set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s website.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE
REPORT

This ESG report covers the environmental and social performance
within the operational boundaries of the Group that include the
software platform business in Hong Kong and Guangzhou of
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), money lending business
in Hong Kong, and mobile gaming business in Hong Kong. The
reporting period of this ESG report is the financial year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (“FY2017"), unless specifically
stated otherwise. This ESG report will be issued on an annual basis.
For corporate governance section, please refer to the page 14 to 30
of this annual report.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The information in this ESG report was gathered from the
official documents and statistics of the Group, the integrated
information of supervision, management and operation in
accordance with the relevant policy, the internal quantitative and
qualitative questionnaires based on the reporting framework, and
sustainability practices provided by the subsidiaries of the Group.
A complete content index is available at the end of the ESG report
for readers’ convenience to check efficiently. This ESG report is
prepared in Chinese and English and has been uploaded to the
Company’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk. For any conflict
or inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

With the goal to strengthen the sustainability approach and
performance of the Group, the Group put tremendous efforts into
listening to both its internal and external stakeholders. The Group
actively collects feedback from its stakeholders to maintain a high
standard of sustainability within the Group, while also building a
trustful and supporting relationship with them. The Group connects
with its stakeholders through their preferred communication
channels as listed in the table below.

ERRE

AIRE - e REARSERKEBLRE
BEOEAXHRGT EENGEER

BIFABECRETHNERMES - ERNIR
SEENASTEMNTHRAETHSE - UK
NEBWEBE A R AR A HFEMED
TERNRRIIENARE 42 RERR
ER HEEELE  ARE - HERE
RMENPXREXREE - RE LHER

DR+ www.aurumpacific.com.hk ©

BT AEHRIT B2 - BUEX
IRA B -

K& 225
BERAEEIRF BN H RRAN
512 AEEBHREINBRABE G

o ARBIHUERBFNENDER -
MR AREASREARFEN - R
BN ERIERRIERE - AREE
BTREIIFOEBLEMMBERRBNR
FNEBE -

Communication Channels

BERE

Stakeholders
B

Expectations and concerns
BEREE

Government and - Compliance with laws and regulations - Supervision on complying with local laws and

regulatory authorities - REERIER requlations
TR RS2 M - EBRNETRMEERER
- Support economic development - Routing reports and taxes paid
- XBRERERE - EREBERENTE

Shareholders - Return on investments - Regular reports and announcements

& - RADR - THRERAM
- Corporate governance - Regular general meetings
- EER - THRRA®
- Business compliance - Official website
- ARKEE - BAM

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

k- Annual Report 2017



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HEBRERRS

IV. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Stakeholders
BE

Expectations and concerns

BEREE

IV. {0 & 228 (H)

Communication Channels
BRERE

Employees

&8

Customers
®pP

Suppliers
e

General public
—RAR

- Employees’ compensation and benefits
- EEZHMMER

- Career development

- REER

- Health and safety working environment
- B Z2IERE

- High quality products and services
- BERERRRH

- Protect the rights of customers

- REZFER

- Fair and open procurement
- RFPRARRE
- Win-win cooperation

- BRAE

- Involvement in communities

- BAME

- Business compliance

- REE

- Environmental protection awareness
- BIRRRE

- Performance reviews

- RBEE

- Regular meetings and trainings

- TR RE

- Emails, notice boards, hotline, caring activities with
management

- BE TR 2% RERBEOHEED

- Customer satisfaction survey

- BFREREHE

- Face-to-face meetings and on-site visits
- HHHERNEHEER

- Customer service hotline and email

- EPRBRGRED

- Open tendering

- LRAR

- Face-to-face meetings and on-site visits
- RHEERREMEER

- Industry seminars

- R

- Media conferences

- BEe:

- Public welfare activities
- DAREH

- Face-to face interview
- EHEHE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Materiality Assessment

The Group undertakes annual review in identifying and
understanding its stakeholders’ main concerns and material
interests for the ESG report. In FY2017, the Group engaged
its stakeholders to conduct a materiality assessment survey.
Specifically, internal and external stakeholders were selected based
on their influence and dependence on the Group. Stakeholders
were then invited to express their views and concerns on a list of
sustainability issues via an online survey. As a result, the Group is
able to prioritise the issues for discussion.

With respect to this ESG report, the Group identified employee
benefits & pay system and protecting intellectual property rights as
issues of high importance to both the Group and its stakeholders.
This review helped the Group in prioritising its sustainability issues,
highlighting the material and relevant aspects, and aligning them
with stakeholders’ expectations.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to ensuring long-term sustainability to
the environment and community where the Group operates. The
Group stringently controlled its emissions and consumption of
resources, and complied with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations in its daily operations during the year under review.
All offices and business units of the Group implemented effective
energy conservation measures to reduce emissions and resource
consumption.

This section primarily discloses the Group's policies, practices, and
quantitative data on emissions, use of resources, the environment
and natural resources in FY2017.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY V.
(CONTINUED)

RBAEFEN ()

A1, BERYD

A.1. Emissions

The Group complies with all relevant local environmental
laws as set out in the country where the Group operates. In
FY2017, the Group found no disregard to influential laws
relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions,
water or land discharging, and hazardous or non-hazardous
wastes.

Since the Group's businesses are mostly operated in offices,
the air emissions of sulfur oxides (“SOx"), nitrogen oxides
(“NOx") and particulate matter ("PM") are relatively
insignificant and can be negligible. In FY2017, the Group's
total GHG emissions amounted to 102.19 tonnes CO,e, with
an intensity of 1.09 tonnes CO,e/employee. Other than GHG
emissions, the Group also generated 1.83 tonnes of non-
hazardous solid wastes (with an intensity of 0.02 tonnes/
employee), and 12.05 tonnes of non-hazardous wastewater
(with an intensity of 0.13 tonnes/employee) in its operations.
Given the nature of business, the Group did not generate any
hazardous waste in FY2017. The Group's total emissions are
summarised in Table 1 below.

Table 1 Group's Total Emissions by Category in FY2017

AEBBTREMERKF LA —
DEMBERREERE R-F—t
FHRFE  AEELTEZRYR
BAEBEAFENBAERIBEER
B(DRERE DM - KESHT R
EEUEFTEYERE -

HRAREBMERERAETNEITE
% EERTERBYENENR
e (T ]) - &b (I &k
) REBEFRT([BERT]) - 8
EMTRE NE—LFHHBF
B AEEMEAEREBEIRES
TNROE—FELHREE  BEA
BEEBEI1.09E _E/IRESE - B
THBBEREN  AEENEE
BHIMES1.83MIEEEEREY
(BmEEEXESB0.021)M12.05
WEEEEREK(REATHEER013
ME) - MR EBHEE - AEBR =
St FUWREREVEEEEERE
) o AEBABEERE BN T
2;— o

x— AEAR _F—+FF
BF BRI S E 7 B4R B A E

Intensity*

Emissions Key Performance Indicator (KPI) Unit Amount (Per employee)
B TERRER By g8 EEX(BEES)
GHG emissions Scope 1 (Direct Emission) tonnes CO,e
RERBHN B (EREER) M_RmtixEgs 2.1 0.13

Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emission) tonnes CO,e

EE2 (REHE) M-_R{iEE 90.08 0.96

Total (Scope 1 & 2) tonnes CO,e

st (8 1712) M_RmtixEgs 102.19 1.09
Non-hazardous waste ~ Solid Waste tonnes
FEEEY EIRREY WE 1.83 0.02

Wastewater tonnes

BE7K A 12.05 0.13
*Intensity = amount + annual average workforce of the Group *ZREF = B~ NEFEFFHGAF
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

Software platform business

Emissions for the Group’s software platform business include
GHG emissions from the use of electricity, and municipal solid
waste and wastewater generated by the staff in the office. No
hazardous waste was generated in this business segment in
FY2017.

As GHG emissions mainly come from the use of electricity,
the Group has taken effective steps to reduce the amount
of electricity usage. Specific measures taken in the office are
further described in A.2. Use of Resources.

The Group is committed to environmental protection in
its daily operations in the office. To reduce the amount of
municipal solid waste generated every day, the Group has
implemented the following practices:

o Recycle as many solid waste as possible;

o Encourage all employees to reduce the use of
disposable items such as plastic tableware; and

o Advocate reusing of office stationeries.

Since the amount of wastewater generated highly depends
on the amount of water used, the Group adopts specific
measures, further described in the A.2. Use of Resources, to
reduce water consumption. Municipal wastewater is directly
discharged into the property wastewater handling system.

Money lending business

In this business segment, the Group is very prudent in
controlling all discharges as well. GHG emissions in the
Group’'s money lending business also come from the
electricity consumption during its daily operations, and the
internal policies established to control electricity usage would
be further described in A.2. Use of Resources.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY V.
(CONTINUED)

RBAEFEN ()

A BERY (&)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

Money lending business (Continued)

The wastewater generated in this business segment only
includes domestic wastewater, while the solid waste
generated is non-toxic domestic garbage. The Group
proactively collects, categorises and reuses the recyclable
paper, before delivering them to the municipal sanitation
department or qualified recycle company for further disposal.

Mobile gaming business

To reduce both the direct and indirect emissions, the Group
continuously performs the separate collection method on the
daily domestic garbage to ensure the reuse of the recyclable
waste, such as plastic bags, plastic lunch boxes, paper and
so on. Besides, the Group provides microwave in the office
to encourage staff to bring their own lunch boxes instead of
ordering foods, thereby to some extent minimising the impact
of packaging materials on the environment. The Group also
chooses glass cups instead of disposable cups for the guests,
which reflects that the Group focuses on every trivial aspect in
its operation to protect environment.

The GHG emissions from the Group are mainly generated
from its purchased electricity consumed by the daily
operation. To reduce the amount of carbon emissions, the
Group has implemented several practical measures on saving
energy as further described in A.2. Use of Resources.

MEFE ()
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Bk - EAMERENAIRIES
B8 B R LR o ARG E
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.2. Use of Resources
The Group complied with relevant laws and regulations in
relation to the Group's use of resources during the year under
review. In FY2017, resources consumed by the Group were
electricity, gasoline, water and paper. The Group did not
consume any packaging materials for its products during the
year under review.

Table 2 The Group’s Total Use of Resources in FY2017

V. RIBWEFENE)

A.2. ERER

REBRFE  AEBETEHEER
ERNMERENIER - RZF
—tEFEMREE  FAEEERENE
BRAREN Al KRR - RE
BFE  AKEYEERHERE
A BaEME

K= AEFR - F—+FF
BF B 848 &R &

Intensity*

Use of Resources Key Performance Indicator (KPI) Unit Amount (Per Employee)
ERER HRENER By gE BE*(BEESR)
Energy Electricity kWh'000
G eV FEFRNE 124.2 1.32

Gasoline L

i NI 4,472 47.57
Water Water m?
K K TR 13.37 0.14
Paper Paper kg
R R T 3365 3.58

*Intensity = amount + annual average workforce of the Group
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

Electricity

The Group strives to save electricity through implementation of
internal policies and use of advanced technologies. The Group’s
electricity consumption mainly comes from regular operation of the
offices. All subsidiaries of the Group stringently complied with the
Group's policy of saving energy during the year under review.

In FY2017, the Group started to replace traditional light bulbs
with electricity-saving light bulbs in the office area and strengthen
the education about the importance and approach of energy
conservation and emission reduction. To ensure the most effective
use of electricity, the Group also conducts following practices:

° Turn office lights off whenever and wherever not necessary;
o Turn office cooling air-conditioners down or off whenever not
necessary;

° Place posters “Save Electricity, Turn off Lights when Leaving”
in prominent places;

. Clean office equipment such as refrigerator, air-conditioner
regularly to maintain high operating efficiency;

° Perform regular inspection and maintenance of the
equipment; and

o Encourage the use of staircase instead of taking the lift for
inter-floor traffic.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

Energy

During the FY2017, the Group consumed gasoline for
transportation purposes. The Group encourages energy saving
through simple measures, such as making the best use of room
to avoid unnecessary transportation, encouraging its employees
to take public transportation for commuting and replacing highly
polluting vehicles with more environmentally-friendly ones.

Water

Water is one of the most precious resources on the planet and the
Group keeps educating its employees that lifting a finger on water
conservation can make a huge difference. To improve the utilisation
efficiency of water resources, the Group adopts the following
practices:

° Place posters “Saving Water Resource” in prominent places to
encourage water conservation; and

° Fix dripping taps immediately.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

Paper

Paper is mainly consumed by the Group in its offices. The Group
strives to reduce paper produced at source by adopting the
following practices:

° Use more environmentally-friendly paper;

° Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. email or
e-bulletin boards);

. Set duplex printing as the default mode for most network
printers;

° Think before print: use posters and stickers as reminder for
office staff to avoid unnecessary printings;

o Place boxes and trays next to photocopiers to collect single-
sided paper for reuse and recycling;

° Promote the concept of ‘Give a second chance’: encourage
staff to use used paper for draft documents or as scratch
paper;

° E-mail tips: remind staff to consider the environment before

printing the email.

A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

In FY2017, given the nature of business, the main impact
of the Group’s operations on the environment was the
indirect GHG emissions from the purchase of electricity and
consumption of gasoline for transportation. To minimise GHG
emissions, which are always connected with the precursor of
global climate change, the Group strictly monitors, manages
and improves its business model and is committed to relying
on the efficient usage and control of natural resources to
ultimately implement its sustainability strategy and values.
Through a series of measures on saving electricity, water,
gasoline and paper products that have been introduced
above, the Group has made a significant change towards the
building of a reliable, resilient and sustainable corporation
that pioneers in the industry of IT hardware.
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V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B.1. Employment

The Group treasures employee’s talent and sees it as the key
in driving the success and maintaining the sustainability of the
Group. The Group strives to provide its employees with a safe
and suitable platform for professionalism development and
advancement.

Law compliance

The human resources policies of the Group strictly adhere
to the applicable employment laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and the PRC, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance, Labour Contract Law of the PRC
(hEE AR FEMBEL A RE), and Labour Law of the PRC
(h#E AR K FE L B)X). The Group has also complied
with the laws and regulations in respect to the employees’
social security schemes that are enforced by the local
governments, such as the legal social security (endowment
insurance, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
unemployment insurance and maternity) and housing
accumulation funds (AL —%) in the PRC, and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and Medical Insurance Scheme in
Hong Kong. The human resources department of the Group
review and update the relevant company policies regularly in
accordance with the latest laws and regulations.

Recruitment and promotion

Talent acquisition is vital to the Group’s business future
development. The Group prepares the “Year Recruitment
Plan”. To attract high-calibre candidates, the Group offers
fair, competitive remuneration and benefits based on the
individuals’ past performance, personal attributes, job
experiences and career aspiration. The Group also references
market benchmarks in determining its remuneration and
benefit policies. As talent retention is vital to the future
business development of the Group, the Group constantly
reviews its compensation packages, and performs
probationary and regular evaluations according to the
overall market environment, profitability of the Group and
employee’s performance in the past. This ensures that
employees can be recognised by the Group appropriately with
respect to their efforts and contributions.
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VI. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) VI. e HEM (&)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) EBEREIER(E)
B.1. Employment (Continued) B.1. {&{& (&)
Compensation and dismissal 18 K fEIE

Any appointment, promotion or termination of recruitment
contract should be based on reasonable, lawful grounds
and internal policies. The Group strictly prohibits any kind of
unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group has formulated its policies based on local
employment laws, for determining working hours and rest
period for employees. The Group monitors its employee’s
working hours, and those who work overtime are
compensated with overtime pay or additional days off. In
addition to basic paid annual leave and statutory holidays
stipulated by the employment laws of the local governments,
employees may also be entitled to additional leave benefits
such as marriage leave, maternity leave and compassionate
leave.

Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed to
creating a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity
in all its human resources and employment decisions. For
instance, training and promotion opportunities, dismissals
and retirement policies are based on factors irrespective of
the employees’ age, sex, marital status, pregnancy, family
status, disability, race, colour, descent, national or ethnic
origins, nationality, religion or any other non-job related
factors in all business units of the Group. Also, in terms of
internal coaching and communication, effective two-way
communication between general staff and managerial staff
is highly encouraged. Employees maintain timely and smooth
communication with the management and colleagues within
the Group through the emails, trainings and meetings. The
interactive communication not only benefits the Group’s
decision-making process, but makes for a barrier-free
employer-employee relationship as well.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
B.1. Employment (Continued)

Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination (Continued)
The equal opportunity policy allows zero tolerance in relation
to any workplace discrimination, harassment or vilification
in accordance with local ordinances and regulations, such as
Disability Discrimination Ordinance and Sex Discrimination
Ordinance. Employees are encouraged to report any incidents
involving discrimination to the human resources department
of the Group. The Group will take responsibility for assessing,
dealing with, recording and taking any necessary disciplinary
actions on such incidents.

Other benefits and welfare

As for employee welfare, to cultivate employees’ sense of
belonging, the Group hosted a series of activities for the
employees in FY2017 such as annual dinner, BBQ, and so on.
These events have helped the employees to relieve stress, and
served to strengthen the Group's corporate culture of the
spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees.

During the year under review, the Group was in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
welfare and other benefits that have a significant impact on the
Group.
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RE  HEBRERRS

VI. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
B.2. Health and Safety

VI, 2 AEFEN (E)

EBERLIEHRGE)
B.2. REHZZ

To provide and maintain good working conditions and
a safe and healthy working environment, the Group’s
safety and health policies are in line with various laws and
regulations stipulated by the local government, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, and Occupational
Disease Prevention Law in the PRC (FFZE A R MBI H; %50

JAE).

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism to
ensure the workplace safety. The Group has taken a range
of occupational health and safety measures for all of its
employees in the office. Specifically, in FY2017, the Group
prohibited smoking and drinking liquor in the workplace,
built up safety warning signs, carried out the disinfection
treatment of carpets and set up first aid boxes with an aim to
maintain a clean, tidy, smoke-free, non-hazardous, healthy
and safe working environment in the office. Besides, the
Group held regular occupational health and safety training,
tips and briefings to its staff to minimise the risk of accidents
and enhance the employees’ health and safety awareness.
The Group is committed to achieving an accident-free work
environment. In FY2017, the Group had no work-related
fatalities.

During the year under review, the Group was not in violation
of any of the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
providing a safe working environment and protecting the
employees from occupational hazards that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
B.3. Development and Training

The Group draws up training plans in accordance with
the Group’s training needs. Specifically, the Group offers
comprehensive training and development programmes to
its staff in order to strengthen their work-related skills and
knowledge. The purpose is to equip employee with the
necessary skills, knowledge and attitudes to meet the Group's
need. The internal trainings initiated by the Group target
all employees of different levels in various departments,
including company overview training, health and safety
training, and anti-bribery and corruption, and new regulatory
updates. The Group also provides professional trainings for
specific employees, including professional and technical
training and qualifications training.

Moreover, the Group encourages employees to attend
external trainings and take professional qualification
examinations for enhancing their competitiveness and
expanding their capacity through continuous learning. The
Group arranges external organisations and experts to provide
job-related seminars and trainings to its employees, so as to
make its employees achieve better working performance after
receiving appropriate training.
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RE  HEBRERRS

VI. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
B.4. Labour Standards

VI, 2 AEFEN (E)

EBERSTERE)
B.4. % T %8|

The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance,
Labour Law of the PRC (Fr#E AR HMEI L5 E))%), Prohibition
of Child Labour of the PRC (2 ARFEMBIZE | FERE TR
%), Protection of Minors Law of the PRC (R AR EFIE &
A ARFENE) and other related labour laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC to prohibit any child and/or forced
labour employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, the Group’s human
resources staff requires job applicants to provide valid identity
documents before confirmation of employment to ensure
that the applicants are lawfully employable. In situations
where the hired staff is found to provide false identity
during the recruitment process, the Group will terminate
the staff’s employment immediately as it is a serious breach
of the Group’s rules and regulations. The human resources
department of the Group is responsible to monitor and ensure
the compliance by the Group with the latest relevant laws and
regulations that prohibit any child labour and forced labour.

During the year under review, the Group was not in violation
of any of the relevant laws and regulations, in relation to the
prevention of child and forced labour that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  #HEBRERRS

V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES
B.5. Supply Chain Management

As an enterprise with a keen sense of social responsibility, it
is critical and vital for the Group to maintain and manage a
sustainable and reliable supply chain that takes environmental
and societal impact into considerations. The Group monitors
the quality of its suppliers and supply chain practices on a
regular basis.

The Group's supply chain management is consistent to its
sustainability strategy in establishing a mutual trust and
understanding with its business partners. Since the business
of mobile data and game related services does not require
suppliers, the Group’s main suppliers come from the business
of software platform. In selecting suppliers, comprehensive
assessment is performed over different criteria including
but not limited to reputation, price, technical capabilities,
business size and product quality. To filter and select the
best supplier in terms of the above criteria, the Group
normally conducts the on-site visit. The staff of Procurement
Department gathers the related information and data from
the suppliers through various channels, including internet,
advertisement, exhibition, and other social media. Moreover,
the factory can also directly contact suppliers to improve the
working efficient in some cases. The qualified suppliers that
have passed our investigation will be put in the ‘Qualified
Supplier List’. To mitigate, or even eliminate the financial and
market risk in supply chain management, the Group normally
maintains a close dialogue with at least two suppliers for each
of supplied services. Meetings are held periodically with the
suppliers to share market information and product updates.
Given the stable and reliable relationship, the suppliers of
our Group have never made any serious mistakes in terms of
the delay of goods and service supplies. Should there be any
severe problem on the quality or delivery of our suppliers,
the Group would undoubtedly put them on the Blacklist, the
companies on which would never be able to cooperate with
the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HEBRERRS

V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.5.

B.6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

To promote a better cooperation and communication with
suppliers, a number of advanced tools are used, including
social media and telephone, in order to update the price,
stock and other information of the product. The Group
maintains close liaison with its suppliers to ensure that they
comply with local laws and regulations in their country and
stick to their corporate ethics during operations.

Product Responsibility

Mobile Game

The Group is engaged to develop its own mobile games in
Hong Kong. To reduce the risk of over reliance upon a single
geographical market whilst increasing the marketability
of the games, the Group has sub-licensed the games to
operators in designed territories as well as third party
internet platforms such as Apple’s App Store and Google
Play, subject to the contractual terms agreed upon with
them. The Group provides technical support to the licensed
operators/customers on an as-needed basis to enhance
game optimisation. This typically comes in the form of in-
game maintenance, updates, upgrades as well as debugging
exercises. The game development team will generate the
demo version of the game for further testing, internal review
and optimisation. The Group typically chooses one of a
pool of out-sourced service suppliers with which it engaged
previously or of which the work quality meets our standard.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Mobile Game (Continued)

The Group provides services to the customers through
emails and 24-hour hotline. The advice or complaints from
customers will be collected by the customer services team
through Apple’s App Store and Google Play Store. Complaints
are then handled by the managers and relevant departments,
who consequently carry out data analysis in an accurate,
attentive and timely manner under standard procedures. The
substantiated complaints from customers are mainly about
the bug in the game. To reduce the number of bugs and offer
a better gaming experience for our customers, we update and
maintain the product on a weekly basis. We believe that such
practice will help us strengthen product offerings and service
quality, and ultimately enable the Group to stay competitive
in the market.

Software Platform

With regard to the Group’s product safety, advertising and
labelling practice, the Group is strictly in compliance with
the related rules and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC
such as Trade Description Ordinance. The Group is committed
to offering high-quality communications software platform,
electronic learning products and software related services.
The Group provides IT solutions which aim to facilitate
government departments and corporations to communicate
with their customers by using websites, telephones, advanced
mobile phones (e.g. IVR Interactive Voice Response System)
and data (e.g. Mobile Apps) channels. The project team
keeps a smooth communication with customers to assess
and review the progress and to identify and resolve any
problems which may arise during the course of the services.
In order to precisely ensure product safety to the public,
engineers conduct quality control tests in different stages and
the department of technical support performs acceptance
inspection for final check before delivery to the customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HEBRERRS

VI. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) VI. e HEM (&)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) ZIEEM (&)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. EmEE (&)
Software Platform (Continued) B FE(E)

The complaints from customers in this business segment
are mainly delivery delay and poor quality of product. Once
related complaints are received, the project manager will
patiently communicate with customers and efficiently solve
the problem.

Money Lending Business

The Group has been granted a money lenders licence by
the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The Group adopts the money lending policy and procedure
manual which provides guidelines on handling and/or
monitoring of money lending procedures according to the
Money Lenders Ordinance.

The Group is committed to provide clear and balanced
information to customers. Service features, terms and
conditions, and any associated risks, particularly the terms
in relation to repayment, are clearly demonstrated to the
intending borrowers by the Group’s employees through
letters and telephones. Meanwhile, the Group allows
customers to review and consult the terms of contract
and relevant documents with their legal advisers. Relevant
employees are required by the Group to hold proper
professional certification. In addition, the Group performs
"Know Your Customer” procedures and obtains information
from customers in assessing their financial background and
risk tolerant level to provide suitable services. Customers
who are interested in the Group’s services will sign the
acknowledgment on the terms and conditions including the
associated risks.

The Group strives to provide a prompt response to customers’
complaints and opinions. Customers can fax and email to
the Board if they have any complaint. The audit committee
members are responsible to handle the complaints. After
internal discussion, a formal written reply will be issued to
customers if necessary.
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V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

The Group

Consumer data protection

The Group is committed to abiding by the laws in relation to
customer privacy, such as the Consumer Protection Law of the PRC
(P AR EFIEE B A 2SR %) and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, and so on, to ensure that customers’ privacy are strictly
protected. Information collected by the Group from its customers
would only be used for the same purpose as it was collected. The
Group has established a safe and thorough customer data system,
which can only be accessed by the designated staff. The staff who
is not out of the need for job duties should not check customer’s
information. The Group also puts efforts to raising the awareness
of its employees about the data release risks and necessitates
them to sign the confidentiality agreement. The Group prohibits
the provision of customer information to a third party without
authorisation of the customer. All collected personal data of
customers during the course of business is treated as confidential,
and accessible by designated personnel only. Besides, the IT
department strictly controls the installation of relevant software,
and adopts a stringent network behaviour management mechanism
in the office network to prevent data loss and data leakage. For
example, the IT department sets obstructions between office and
commercial net to prevent unauthorized data use, exportation and

copy.

Advertising & Labelling

As for the advertising principle, the Group ensures that any
exaggeration or deception of offerings in the marketing materials
is strictly prohibited. Prior to public release of advertisement, the
materials are reviewed by senior management for final approval to
make sure that no erroneous statements would be made public.
Information that has been disclosed by the Group is required to
be true, accurate and unbiased, which should strictly comply with
the relevant laws and regulations such as Hong Kong’s Trade
Description Ordinance as well. For the advertisement in relation
to the money lending business, the Group is strictly in compliance
with the requirements under the additional licensing conditions
of Money Lenders License, which regulates that the advertisement
should contain the licensee’s telephone hotline for handling
complaints and a risk warning statement.
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V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Intellectual property

The Group is dedicated to protecting and enforcing its intellectual
property rights because intellectual property rights are crucial to the
Group's sustainable business growth and its ability to differentiate
itself from competitors. Apart from encryption, the Group also
makes sure that the protection of its intellectual property rights
through registration, maintenance and enforcement measures
is effective. The Group has established the following internal
measures for data confidentiality in its daily operation:

o Classify and define the scope of commercial secret, and keep
the related documents in designated security area;

. Hire counsel to offer legal advice in terms of intellectual
property;

° Arrange internal legal personnel to scrutinise and prevent the
infringement of intellectual property;

° Strictly implement the Group’s internal confidential rules
and regulations by signing confidentiality agreements with
internal and external parties; and

° Educate employees and enhance their awareness in relation
to the confidential maintenance of trade secrets and other
proprietary intellectual properties.
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V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B.7. Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the local laws
and regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery,
irrespective of the area or country where the Group conducts
its business, such as the Hong Kong's Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Law of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering (4
ARFFE R EEE).

The Group prohibits all forms of bribery and corruption. The
Group has stipulated the Anti-Fraud Management Policy (&
FEMEREREIE), and requires all employees to strictly abide
by professional ethics and eliminate any corruption and
bribery. All employees are expected to discharge their duties
with integrity, to act fairly and professionally, and to abstain
from engaging in bribery activities or any activities, which
might exploit their positions against the Group’s interests.
No concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices were
brought against the Group or its employees during FY2017.

Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to the senior
management of the Group for any suspected misconduct
with full details and supporting evidence. The management
will conduct investigations against any suspicious or illegal
behaviour to protect the Group's interests. The Group
advocates a confidentiality mechanism to protect the
whistle-blowers against unfair dismissal or victimisation.
When criminality is suspected, a report will be made to the
relevant regulators or law enforcement authorities when the
management considers necessary.

During the year under review, the Group was not in violation
of any of the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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RE  HEBRERRS

V1.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY
B.8. Community Investment

As a corporate citizen, the Group deeply realises the
importance of making a positive contribution to the
communities where the Group operates, and sees
the interests of the communities as one of its social
responsibilities. The Group is committed to promoting
the economic development and living environment of
the community, and insists on helping individuals and
organizations within the community. The Group is also keen
to support social welfare activities and community care
projects, and encourages its own employees to participate in
these activities and projects.

Specifically, the Group delegated employees to attend the
‘Blind Travel event held by Orbis Hong Kong in 2017, aiming
to develop empathy with blind people.

The Group believes that enterprise and the communities,
where the Group operates, are inseparable. To better fulfil its
social responsibilities, the Group will never stop its footsteps
to pursue the harmonious and symbiotic prosperity with
communities.
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(b)compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BHERREREHN  mAKRLIBNHES  BEEREEERNNELSH
@EE: R
() EFHETABEAZBNRREZRATINER -

The types of emissions and respective emission data. 35

BB BRAEREREE -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 35
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BERBEHNE(UEHE) R(NER) ZE(WUASES SN - BEFREHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 35
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FELAEREENEEANEGE) R(WER)ZE (MU BSEEEN - BEREHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 35
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEAREEENES OAEE) L (mER ) BE (MNGES BN - §EREHE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 36

HLRESRERNEERAERRE -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction 36
initiatives and results achieved.
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BRENERA23 HR B R P A aRA B SRR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 40
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
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KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with 38
reference to per unit produced.
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A3:The Environment  General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural 41
and Natural resources.
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KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural 41
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
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Information on: 45
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BEREZ2IERERRBREEREBELEEN
@EE: R
OEFHETABEATYENRBZERRDINER -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. 46
Description of training activities.
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Information on: 47
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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Operating Practices

BEES

B5: Supply Chain General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 48
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B6: Product
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—REE

General Disclosure
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Information on: 49
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
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Information on: 54
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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@BE: Rk
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Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where 55
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEBAERHE

As at date of report, the biographies of Directors and senior management
are set out as below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”), aged 34, has been appointed as an
executive Director, authorised representative and compliance officer
of the Company since 13 October 2014 and a deputy Chairman with
effect from 16 October 2015. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Information
Systems and a Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin University of
Technology, Australia. Mr. Chan has been appointed as a committee
member of the 9th Committee of Maoming City of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since January 2017. Mr. Chan has
extensive experience in information technology, accounting, finance,
corporate governance, strategic planning, as well as merger and
acquisition.

Mr. Chan is currently an executive director of Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is currently a non-executive
director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Huiyin Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 1178) and Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (stock code:
705), which both companies shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan was the chairman, executive director, authorised representative
and compliance officer of PPS International (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 8201), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from
June 2015 to July 2016. He was also an executive director of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from July 2016 to August 2016.
He was also an executive director of Green Energy Group Limited (stock
code: 979), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from February 2017 to July 2017.

Mr. Chan Kwun Chung (“Mr. Chan"), aged 37, has been appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 20 March 2017. Mr. Chan obtained
his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Master of Arts in
Applied Economics from the University at Buffalo, The State University of
New York in 2002 and 2004 respectively. Mr. Chan has been working in
the field of financial advisory, insurance, healthcare and he has extensive
experiences in customer relationship management, project management,
business advisory and risk management. Mr. Chan was an independent
non-executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8022) from 1 January 2017 to 1 March 2017, shares of which are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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EENGREEBAERE

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (“Mr. Lee”), aged 36, has been
appointed as an executive Director with effect from 5 February 2018.
Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor Degree of Commerce (Accounting) from
The University of Queensland, Australia in 2004. Mr. Lee has been a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since
2009 and became a fellow member since 2014. Mr. Lee has over 13 years
of experience in financial reporting, investment analysis, mergers and
acquisition exercises and business development. Mr. Lee has been taking
up various senior positions in the financial and business sectors for over 7
years and he also has extensive experience in terms of Hong Kong listed
companies. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director
of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited (stock code: 1188) and an independent
non-executive director of Chuan Holdings Limited (stock code: 1420)
which both companies’ shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 30, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 February
2016. He has been engaging in financial services sector for over 6 years,
along with ample experience in an international accounting firm and an
international bank. He currently serves as a corporate finance principal for
a professional firm. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences
from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2009. Mr. Leung is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and joined the
Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
2018. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of
Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022) whose shares are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric (“Mr. Fok"), aged 34, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 2 March 2016.
Mr. Fok has over 10 years' experience in financial advisory industry, with
ample experience in asset management and risk management. Mr. Fok
obtained a bachelor degree of banking and finance from the University
of London and currently serves as a senior financial advisor at an
international insurance corporation.
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EENGREEBAERHE

Mr. Pang Siu Yin (“Mr. Pang”), aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 15 January 2018.
He graduated from the University of Leeds with a bachelor of laws degree
in 1984 and obtained a master of business administration degree from
the University of Aston in Birmingham in 1985. Mr. Pang also obtained
a postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong in
1988. Mr. Pang has been a practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong since 1990 and was also admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales in 1997. He is currently a partner of LCP, a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong, with his practice focusing on commercial and litigation. Mr. Pang
is currently an independent non-executive director of Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock
code: 6828), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and Singapore Stock Exchange (stock code: UQ7). Mr. Pang was an
independent non-executive director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 8238), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
from July 2015 to March 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong Wing Heen, Gabriel ("Mr. Kwong"”), aged 37, is the
executive director of First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries,
responsible for business management, development, and creative
direction. He graduated from University of California Berkeley, Bachelor
of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, and he was deeply
influenced by and exposed to the tech startup culture of the Silicon
Valley. In 2004, Mr. Kwong founded his first tech startup in Hong Kong,
specialized in tech innovation and digital entertainment. In 2005, Mr.
Kwong developed Asia’s first web based virtual world social platform,
Sooff.com, in which he, as the Producer and System Architect, made the
earliest attempt to implement concepts like micro-transaction, freemium,
gamification, and advertising through social network, which are all game
industry norms nowadays. From 2006 to 2009, Mr. Kwong worked with
various 4As advertising agencies, such as TBWA, Ogilvy & Mather, and
McCann, as the Digital Creative Director to design and develop game
projects and award-winning digital advertising campaigns for brands like
Intel, Cartoon Network, Levi’s, VTech, and Nokia. In 2010, Mr. Kwong
switched his focus from web game to mobile game and founded Mooff
Games Limited, a mobile game company that currently has accumulated a
total game downloads of 6 million worldwide and has games featured by
Apple App Store and Google Play featured multiple times. From 2010 to
2016, Mr. Kwong also took the role of Game Producer for clients such as
Disney, TVB, MTR, Culturecom, and Mission Hills, to develop mobile game
titles. Mr. Kwong has 20 years of experience in technology development
and creative production, and over 15 years of experience in tech startup,
game development, social community, gamified advertising, and project

management.
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EENGREEBAERE

Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (“Mr. Mo"), aged 58, was an executive
Director and the CEO from 31 December 2012 to 8 October 2015,
and currently the director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Mo founded his first company CompuFont Limited in 1989 to develop
Asian language technologies for display and printing, which were later
licensed by Microsoft for use in its nascent Chinese version of Windows
3.0 product for personal computers. CompuFont Limited was in 1991
acquired by a Taiwan based software technology company, Dynalab
Inc. which was engaged in the development and sales of solutions on
local language computing for Chinese, Japanese and Korean (CJK) for
electronic and internet publishing, where Mr. Mo continued his service as
the managing director of Hong Kong branch of Dynalab Inc. and various
management roles until 1999 when he left to found KanHan Technologies
Limited (“KHT"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Mo
is an expert in CJK language font technology for PC and professional
publishing market. Mr. Mo holds a degree in computer science from
the University of Toronto, Canada and has over 30 years experience in
technology development, selling and business startup in the information
technology industry and over 10 years experience in the development and
sales of solutions on local language computing for Asian languages and
for electronic and internet publishing.

Mr. Mak Ka Ming (“Mr. Mak"”), aged 39, is the project director of
KHT. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Bachelor of
Manufacturing Engineering. Mr. Mak joined KHT in Oct 2013 having over
10 years' IT and Project Management experience, and now responsible for
product development and service delivery.

Ms. Leung Ching Man (“Ms. Leung”), aged 31, has been appointed as
company secretary of the Company with effect from 3 August 2016. Ms.
Leung joined the Company in March 2016 and she obtained a Bachelor of
Business Administration from Lingnan University in 2009 and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has over
7 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has
its principal place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F, Henan Building, 90
Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are provided in the Board of
Directors’ statement on pages 5 to 6 and the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 7 to 13. The principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 11 and disclosed in the section headed “Financial risk management
and fair values of financial instruments” in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Important events affecting the Group is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 13.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial
Summary on page 216. The Group is committed to supporting the
environmental sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources and energy saving. Green
initiatives and measures have been adopted in the Group’s operation.
More details are disclosed in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 31 to 59.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group recognizes
that our employees, customers and business partners are the keys to our
sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing a close
and caring relationship with our employees, providing quality services to
our customers and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing operations attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year under review is as follows:

TREFRHER

FEAEEROBEMBFENREIERR
REEBHEREEH 2 HERREENSE
FgnR

Percentage of the Group'’s total

hAKEEEzA DT
Sales Purchases
SHE e
The largest customer RRKEF 11%
Five largest customers in aggregate AARFAR 42%
The largest supplier BAHIERE 1%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARHEEE AR 43%

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group's and the Company’s
affairs for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 215.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$233,998,000 (2016:
HK$222,862,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - BERSE
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group REEDE BMEMIREZEZHFBHNREE
are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. W R M -
OTHER BORROWINGS H &R
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note KREBERMK BERFEBHNES T BHRRMTE
22 to the consolidated financial statements. 22 °
SHARE CAPITAL [N
Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are set KB FEEZIRAEHFHIBTHNRGETHBRER
out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial statements. MizE27(a) °
DIRECTORS B=
The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date of RAVBEEREEAREBH - EFEHN
this report are as follows: N
Resigned/
Appointed on Retired on

E3Es BERE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chan Wai Kit BRIEGE ST 13/10/2014 N/ATE
Ms. Wong Chi Yan s 27/5/2015 12/10/2017
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah HEELEE 23/2/2016 20/3/2017
Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan BER AL 2/3/2016 20/3/2017
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung BRE AR E 20/3/2017 N/ATT 3
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace e 5/2/2018 N/AT 3 F

Independent non-executive Directors I I HTES

Mr. Leung Man Chun RN E 23/2/2016 N/AZ i A
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric ERELLE 2/3/2016 N/AA 3 A
Dr. Lee Nim Wai ToRE 16/3/2016 15/1/2018
Mr. Pang Siu Yin TRB L 15/1/2018 N/AT3E B

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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In accordance with Article 108(A), one-third of the Directors shall retire at
each annual general meeting from office by rotation. Further, according
to Article 112, any director appointed by the Directors to fill a casual
vacancy in the Company under that article shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election at the meeting.

Biographical details of the Directors are set in the section “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the AGM in accordance with the Articles and the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

Neither the existing executive Directors has entered into service contract
with the Company nor appointed for a fixed term for the year ended 31
December 2017. Each of the INEDs has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company, had, was deemed to have any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), (Chapter 571 under
the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2017, the
following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, had, or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were expected to be
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group:

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity

TERRHEEB g

TERREEMATARE
HRARRRF 2

FERR

BEEMAM R-_ZT—ttF+-_A=+—
B TIAL(EEHARREIETHRAER
SR HAEREBR DT HER - KRS EE
BARBESFMEGRPIEXVEE2 N30 B 6
X AMARRRBZRE 2 SRR
of T8 A B 5 o R M R T S A U T (AT 1S
ATEAEBEMKERRZBRAG LKRE
ZAEERIR A ES % 3UA £z e

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares  shareholding

ROBE #BOYREEIL
(Note 1)
(Btet1)

Beneficial owner
ExnEAA

Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung
HRERE

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of other
interests or short positions of any other person (other than the Directors
and chief executives and the substantial shareholders of the Company)
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2017.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option
Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March 2013
and note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the
Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2016
and the Company’s circular dated 13 April 2016.

The total number of share option that could be granted was 108,864,000
shares at par value of HK$0.04 each, representing approximately 10%
of the total issued shares of the Company on the date of passing the
resolution to refresh the Share Option Scheme limit at the annual general
meeting on 4 May 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to date of this report, the
Company had not granted any options and no outstanding options under
the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which the
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years is set out on page 216 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders of the Company
(within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the CG Code contained in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
Details of the CG Code adopted by the Company are set out in the section
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company has good corporate governance practices.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with written terms of
reference which was amended on 7 January 2016. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review, in draft form, the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly reports and to provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee is also
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal control of the Group. As at the date of this
report, the audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Leung
Man Chun, Mr. Pang Siu Yin and Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric. Mr. Leung Man
Chun is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group does not have other
significant events after the reporting period.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Wai Kit

Deputy Chairman

23 March 2018

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | M s

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) set out on pages 86 to 215, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter
FTEENSBE

Business combination

EESH

TEFFER

RERFMNBRHE  TERFFERLEY
AHGE AV BRRBAREENTE - ZFS
HRAERMESEVBRRETETNRRE
MTRE - YRMEHER - MBRALTHZ
SREBUREER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEREGFSENG E

Refer to Notes 2(d), 2(e), 2(f) and 29 of the audited consolidated financial statements

AL E G AR EIAMT2(d) ~ 2(e) ~ 2() 229

On 13 April 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in Stars Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries and associates.
The fair value of interests in associates held by Stars Ventures
Limited as at the acquisition-date was assessed by using
discounted cash flow method.

R-DZ—+EMA+=H " &%BEIHEStars Ventures
Limited % E Mt & 2 & R B & 2 8 100% X # - [ Stars
VenturesFTiF B MBI & A ETKRER 2 A FELBAE
FHEIRIB & REREITHE °
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Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BAEL T EMETEFBR(ET )

e assessing the independency and competency of the
external valuation specialist appointed by the Group to
calculate the acquisition-date fair value of the associates;

o FHE BEXEEMZENIIBHEESRNFTERZQRNK
BHAAFERELIEREE
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BAZBMBES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FTEEFEE ()

Business combination (Continued)

35 6f ()

TEFTEREA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMEEEFTSENTE ()

Refer to Notes 2(d), 2(e), 2(f) and 29 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

AR REE G A B EIRER N E2(d) ~ 2(e) ~ 2(H) 29(4E)

In applying such methodology, the Group made a number
of key assumptions and estimates relating to the associates,
including growth and attrition rates discount rates and
product life cycles. The valuation of the associates requires
judgement and is sensitive to the assumptions used.

ERBZEE 0 RRERBEAT(QERRERAR
% BRERERESEN) EHETEBRRRIGT o HH
BRTEEAEHIR - 35 AR B A BRI -

assessing the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used by management to the external experts by
challenging and corroborating the market data and
information from similar transactions;

BB RFERURSNTSBIELEN  HEEEE
HOMBERE RN ABIR N EREE RARREN

assessing the robustness of the cash flow forecasts to
changes in assumptions, including sales growth beyond
the 2018 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and
discount rates in the model to assess the appropriateness
of the value of interests in associates recognised at the
acquisition date;

AR REBRAHBRRECHBRE - BRNMERFH
“E-NFREFAFINEELER  RAERENMRE
T PRHEEBE AR RERWE B RAERNEERSE
reviewing the agreements relating to the business
combination;

BEAREKE A
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) TEFTEREA)
The Key Audit Matter (Continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)
FEFFEE () BRMREEFFTENSE (F)

Business combination (Continued)

35 6f ()

Refer to Notes 2(d), 2(e), 2(f) and 29 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRREE RS S BEREZNF2(d) ~ 2(e) » 2(1)%29(#)

e examining the accounting entries for the business
combination prepared by management and determine
whether they were in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised)
“Business Combinations”; and

s REEEEMRHENEFAMHEILE  YREEREN
BEBMBHREENEIR (BER]) [EHas] &

e assessing the adequacy of the disclosures about business
combination in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised).

o REBBMBHREEREIN (KEFT) FHEBEHKA
HOBRBELERR °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FTEEFEE ()

TEFTEREA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMEEEFTSENTE ()

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwiill

SERFEARERNRE BN EE A

Refer to Notes 2(g), 2(m)(ii) and 13 of the audited consolidated financial statements

FLBEFE GBI BEIREZME2(9) ~ 2(m) iR 13

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's carrying amount
of goodwill was allocated to two cash-generating units
("CGUs"), namely, software platform and mobile gaming
business, which arose from the acquisition of KanHan
Technologies Limited and its subsidiaries (the “KH Group”)
and First Surplus Investments Ltd., and its subsidiaries (the
"FS Group”) respectively.

T—+F+-A=Z+—H  E£EEENEEES
iﬁﬁf.fﬁﬁéﬁi SN ([BREEEEMN]) - EHEAWIPE\&EF%
BEER  EARRERBEZREAR AR REKTE AR
U%?%%J)&First Surplus Investments Ltd. & H [ffE 2 7
(TFS&E D) -

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is based
on the future business prospects and forecast business
performance of these businesses.

BER A B E D ERZ SR
S

EORREB AR KA

Due to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are the basis
of the assessment of recoverability, this is one of the key
judgemental areas that our audit concentrated on. There is
the risk that the key assumptions, estimates and judgements
on which the calculations are based are inappropriate and
that goodwill is overstated as a result.

BN EAETER KA R KR R E T B S K AE R T HEE 14
(RAFEATERENEE) A RMBAMBINIEY
BRIz — o WIRIRUEEEE E’]EKTE"“ RS |
BTEE  MerasAmEnaR

Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BAEL T ENERAREFEE(EP )

e evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

o MHEEEEMEMANRRRITE  FHE
BAIREIR R B BRI R N T0%

REEREER

e assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;

o EMMEEEEMAERNRTAERR  BREMGER
BB EERNE  YHETERERERSTHREET
BN EREEINES

e assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2018
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the goodwill; and

o FMEEABERRELCHREN  BRABEEPN_FT—
FRAAFANHEERR  RIERERMBREX - UFHE
HMENRAELSLTEE ' &

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FTEEFEE ()

TEFTEREA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMEEEFTSENTE ()

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

EFRENRENERBRNEEAE ()

Refer to Notes 2(g), 2(m)(ii) and 13 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRREEFE R MBI E2(9) ~ 2(m) i) 13 (&)

e assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

. HimE

7 R

FHEBENRERFFENBRREFOIRERS R
ZEHETHEAIRECEEERREZENR

= Xt

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets

BRENEENRENATRNEZHE

Refer to Notes 2(k), 2(m)(ii) and 12 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI FE R E I EIREZME2(k) - 2(m)(i) 12

The Group has generated significant intangible assets of
mobile games from acquisitions, whose recoverability is
dependent on the ability of the businesses to which it relates
to generate sufficient future economic benefits. There is a
risk that this will not be the case which would result in an
impairment being required. The most significant risks of
impairment in this category relate to mobile games within the
Group balance of HK$56,947,000.

EEBERBTIFEETAESFUERNEREE AR
MEURREHBAESEE TR RREEREHED - At
BEEEBREELETREMNRREEIZMIBEREBAERE
BRER - IERFHEANRERR SN EEEEHRE
56,947,000/ 7T 2 N K F iz 5 o

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BAELTENEEFEE(EReR)

e evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

o FHMAEREEMEANRRETE  FHREHEER
BATRRIR R BB BRR MITE

4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BAZBMBES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FTEEFEE ()

TEFTEREA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMEEEFTSENTE ()

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets (Continued)

HELEENRENRBRNEZAN ()

Refer to Notes 2(k), 2(m)(ii) and 12 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRHEECE B BHRERME2(0) - 2(m)i) K12 (&)

The carrying amount of the mobile games, which has not
been impaired in the year, is dependent on the business
being able to generate revenue from the paying players and
platform owners for the games developed by FS Group.

RERRBENFREBNREEIRNZESE
EFENERN BRI R FamEaEELS KA -

BEFSE

Impairment reviews are performed by the Group when
there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be
supported. The impairment reviews are based on discounted
cash flow projections reflecting a number of assumptions
and estimates which require judgement and are inherently
uncertain.

BHRREEREFNER - ESEESETRESRN - R
BEFHDENMBRRESRETRE - KRR T ZRFJEHEHNR
B FEABANTREN -

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;

AERKBEEERRAENRERERD  BREMGER
BEteBEEmt - WKBEERAEREZ
KB HERERANEES

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2018
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the mobile games; and

FHATASBRB NIRRT - BERNER PN T —
FREMEANHERR  RPERERBRE - D
FREBNERIEREGEE ' X

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the mobile games.

SRS EAENR SRR RO BR AN RBERE A
5 DRBSHET FRESTRESEAARBEEY S
B -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FTEEFEE ()

Valuation and existence of loan and interest receivables

ERERRAENHEEREFE

TEFTEREA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMEEEFTSENTE ()

Refer to Notes 2(m)(i), 2(o), 2(p), 18 and 28(a) of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRREFE G B BFHRERME2(m)) - 2(0) - 2(p) ~ 185 28(a)

The Group recognised loan and interest receivables recorded
initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost
in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the loans
receivable and interest receivables were HK$96,948,000 and
HK$1,925,000 respectively.

EEERNGAVBRARPERNS AR ELRZERE
HERFE  WEHERBHERARR R-_T—+F+=A
=+—0  ERERKERFESMEEES 5 A96,948,000
7T 51,925,000 7T ©

The impairment assessment on the loans receivable and
interest receivables require estimates and significant
judgements to be applied by the management such that
changes to key inputs to the estimates and/or the judgements
made can result, either on an individual loan or in aggregate,
in a material change to the valuation.

HEKERKEEN SN REFGFEHEREFEL G R
BRI - MZEEME R/ AT EG ABBHR
E BT R BER E R B R EELIRERNES -

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BAELTENEAREFRE(EP )

obtaining and reviewing a sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing to the principal
amounts, interest rates, maturity dates and other
information to the Group’s accounting records;

o ERLEBEEFRMAEA(BERHIIHELTERERH
& B UHER ERENESFRETHOAS  FIER -
B REMER

e testing of controls designed and applied in the process of
approving and granting of loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and loan extension, if any;

o HHERKHERABIE T ARG R IEBAEHETTR
A RREREFRERERER(NEA)

e recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;

o MBEEHMAEERBNERNBMBA



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) TEFTEREA)
The Key Audit Matter (Continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)
FEFFEE () BRMREEFFTENSE (F)

Valuation and existence of loan and interest receivables (Continued)

ERERRAENLERETE(E)

Refer to Notes 2(m)(i), 2(0), 2(p), 18 and 28(a) of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRREEZTEUFBEREZMNZF2(m)0) ~ 2(0) ~ 2(p) + 185 28(a)(#)

Further, as the loan and interest receivables comprised a e obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the

significant number of individual loan balances, there is a risk borrowers; and

that net assets could be misstated should the loans not exist.

o HEEINERANEREXERE K

Eoh - BREREREFEBRERE/EAERBRK - WEK

NEHE - BEFER LA R R RS o e reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiring with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

o BEHEMEERE  YMEEEABEIATRERKE
HoHsREE BIRRRENREA -

OTHER INFORMATION HiEr

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EEEHMER  c EMERBEERANNF
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but BEE  ETNBESAMBHRE RBRMNZE
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s BISRE o

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover RS AMERENSETRELMER
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance RPN gt bt R AR R RELES o
conclusion thereon.

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE S

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

HtEH ()

BRARMABESEMBRERNES  RANEE
ZREEAEMER  YHENBRETEEEM
ENEDRGEAVBRAIEMESRSTAE
BONBEBERT—BMER - HATRENAE
1t 73 AR E A SR RRERA

ARIBHRFIPTETH ITE - HARRUFEM
BENEFEERBREM  RMARSZSE
B - ZPRNET I B EAHRE -

EERAEENGEMBEREA
AENEE

ENFEFAAERBTESHMOGRMZ
BFEMBRELENREE(RBED) B ER
TE AR BB BT AT BRI BN R ER & B 75
X LEEERRRESAVBREMVEDN
NEPEE - WEHFAMBRR T FERRKGF
HIRR MG B 2 BEAFRMBRAL -

EREEAVBERRE  EFFEENE &
SEBEKERD  BREMER) BRFEK
EEBNERAMEBREELLEEEN SR
R BRIFEFHS BEEEFRIMRUELER
% RERBETERRR I EEEE R E
BEMNBRITA -

BEREMBHRERRE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BRBAMHETREMBRRNE
£

BN EERRGAM B HRREERET I FE
AP ERMER c ERERRARFE
BREARHABERMEROXEMBE -
AHEEHEET(EA—EER)2E - Kite
SRR EMAR - AL TERAREN
ABBEFAALTAERE EEAEE -

FENRER —BRKFHRE  EHRTRE
REFESTEANMETHRIEERFEDN
BRI - $5ARER AL A] B2 X BRAF S8R
ARMmEY - WARE(ERHARM) AT S IETE
HerERAPREXSEAVBREMELD
ERTE - BIBAR RE AR -

ERIRBEBESENETRIN D &
PEFFHRTEERAB RRFERVIRER
REE - FAPITT -

- EERMEGABBRERNEAERRL
R (Eim AN FFRERME) - R
SHMITEA R AL RS - W
BRARMEENENEE  SRANER
PRMtER - Kbl BEGEM BN ER
HREUEWERSREHERMERNEKR
HARER A ERR - EEBERRFERI S R
FEER . 4 MEER - BRRASER

MEBESHE -

ZIERMBEEEN - BENAIH BE
BANBEIENERERRER -

-  HMEEERANGFEE - eitEFee
BUERERREESEE

o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

BRBMHETREMBRRNE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number P06231

BB ETREMBHERNE
£ (&)

REREERBNERT  RMEEZEHE
HEAMBRRBAR/EENTE - BME
RS ER FH - HAIEBRARETHLAZSE
TR BREFERERTAAAABRESLS
B REBEFRNBET  HEEBRHESR
AHETEBRERENNBEERRBEES
MARN@ T MO EE - RIOEE TEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

For the yearended 31 December 2017 HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFETTHIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mat FTEx FET
Continuing operations BEKEER
Revenue Wz 3 64,464 33,938
Cost of sales SHE AR (9,134) (7,179)
Gross profit EH B 55,330 26,759
Other income, net ﬁifﬁ”&)\()@}%’@ 4 336 613
Changes in fair value of: NV EED -
— contingent consideration assets for *%ﬁ‘x/\ﬁjﬁiﬁ{gﬁé
business combination (17,971) (1,393)
- prepayment option embedded in —BEITARAR BRI 28281
promissory note issued B (721) (107)
— consideration payable for business —EBattENRE
combination B (6,396) (2,632)
Administrative expenses ITHR 2 (56,457) (43,556)
Research and development expenses Eﬁ%%ﬁi (12,474) (8,460)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (4,124) (3,305)
Loss from operations TEEA (42,477) (32,081)
Finance costs B E KA 5(a) (2,412) (405)
Share of profits of associates FEAG B = X Bl&A A 1,040 -
Share of profits of a joint venture JEE & &3 A 3 =
Loss before taxation PR 754 Al 5 98 5 (43,846) (32,486)
Income tax (expense)/credit SR (RYx) HKe 6 (1,889) 428
Loss for the year from continuing BHEREEBFEEIE
operations (45,735) (32,058)
Discontinued operation BRI REER
Loss for the year from discontinued PRI REE 2 FREBE
operation 7 - (8,237)
Loss for the year FEEBR (45,735) (40,295)
Attributable to: LX'ITAi@{E :
— owners of the Company — AR T%’Eﬁ}\ (48,823) (37,986)
— non-controlling interests — eI iR 3,088 (2,309)
(45,735) (40,295)
HK cents HK cents
AL (Il
Loss per share BRER
From continuing and discontinued SFENMORIEREER
operations .
— Basic and diluted —EANEE 10 (4.50) (5.22)
From continuing operations FREEEH
— Basic and diluted *%K&%Tﬁ 10 (4.50) (4.29)
From discontinued operation ERIEEEER
— Basic and diluted —EARNEE 10 = (0.93)

The notes on pages 93 to 215 form part of the consolidated financial F93E215E MM ARG A MR E Z EK
statements. 205 .
[=]

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBaRHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZE—+F+-_A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF AN
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FET FHET
Loss for the year FEEIE (45,735) (40,295)
Other comprehensive income/ HthEEEEBA S (FX)
(expense) for the year, net of nil tax  EHKREBIE
Items that may be classified subsequently E&r[genBEEEZF2ER ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences: HIAZERE -
- on translation of financial statements of —#BEINHEBHFEHREK 2 KB
foreign operations 5 4 (1,089)
- released upon disposal of discontinued —RHEDKIMELERE 2 Wik
operation AR 31(e) = 7,410
— released upon deregistration of a —AfEEFER—KMBE ARz
subsidiary MERRE R 4 = (46)
Share of exchange differences of B E AR KR ERE
associates 1,397 =
1,401 6,275
Total comprehensive expense FEZHBAXERHE
for the year (44,334) (34,020)
Attributable to: BN AT e
- owners of the Company —ARpElEB A (47,422) (31,679)
- non-controlling interests — JEIER A 2 3,088 (2,341)
(44,334) (34,020)
Total comprehensive expense FAREEARGEEMAAE
attributable to owners of the RE
Company arises from:
Continuing operations FHEIRE T (47,422) (31,273)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER = (406)
(47,422) (31,679)
The notes on pages 93 to 215 form part of the consolidated financial $93F215HM ST ARG A MEHRE 2 HEKK
statements. 5 o

REFPREEER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R &

As at 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—+F+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HaE FHET FHT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 11 53,234 51,141
Intangible assets G E 12 56,947 67,370
Goodwill [EES 13 109,669 109,669
Interests in associates N AN o =y 14 34,901 =
Interest in a joint venture REEREZER 15 13 -
Investment in available-for-sale equity HERERBHIEE
securities 16 500 -
Contingent consideration assets X¥BEHAAREEE
for business combination 28(1) - 17,971
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEYE BELREEMNZS
plant and equipment 3,000 3,000
Loans receivable FEE K 18 = 5,000
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 24(b) 1,196 4,793
259,460 258,944
Current assets RBEE
Inventories g 44 44
Trade and other receivables JFEE AT PR 35 e L At R L K 17 4,847 11,231
Loans receivable JEWE R 18 96,948 165,320
Interest receivables JEW A2 18 1,925 3,995
Prepayment option embedded BTN AT A 1R RE
in promissory note issued TR 28(f) 116 837
Current tax recoverable AT U el BN AR FR IR 24(a) 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents BHE&kBEEEY 19 42,389 11,500
146,270 192,927
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade and other payables JRE AT B 0 R L i JRE 5 3R 20 2,948 3,269
Financial assistance from government AT E BUR B 21 - 114
Deferred income EIEUA 7,174 4,201
Interest-bearing borrowings b BB TR 22 28,000 -
Obligations under finance leases BhE T ERE 23 982 -
Consideration payable for business A HEMRRE
combination 28(f) 71,651 -
Current tax payable JFEAST BN R 18 24(a) = 89
110,755 7,673
Net current assets RBEEFE 35,515 185,254
Total assets less current liabilities EELERARBER 294,975 444,198

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AN LI =
e IR R ]k
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

2017 2016
—E—+tfF NS
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings BB E R 22 - 28,000
Obligations under finance leases BhE T B AEE 23 3,188 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIEAE 24(b) 9,407 11,131
Consideration payable for business EREHENRE
combination 28(f) - 106,623
12,595 145,754
NET ASSETS EEFE 282,380 298,444
Capital and reserves ERR G
Share capital N 27(a) 43,546 36,288
Reserves B 213,561 239,971
Total equity attributable to owners KATEE ABLEREE
of the Company 257,107 276,259
Non-controlling interests PR 25,273 22,185
TOTAL EQUITY AR 282,380 298,444

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March

BEEN_Z-\F=ZA-T=ZAfERKRE

2018. Fg -
Chan Kwun Chung Chan Wai Kit
R E A B {2 1%
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 93 to 215 form part of the consolidated financial FOIE2ISEHMMM ARG S M B RE ZHK
statements. R4y o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREARBDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAETTHIR)
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREAES
Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total interests Total
g5 g% i FER
& RtEE e Bi %  ZHER &3t 5 Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn TiEn Tk ThEn ThR Tin iR Tt T
(note (note (note (note
0000 2700 270)i) - 27(0)i)
Pz (st i (Mzt
270)) 0))  270)i) 270
At 1 January 2016 WZE-xE-f-H 20,160 274,640 2,427 16,699 (6,450) (76,527) 230,949 4618 235,567
Loss for the year £ Eﬁa - - - - - (3798  (37.986) (2309  (40,295)
Exchange differences: e
- on translation of financial *}ﬁﬁﬁ\\l%‘f%gﬁkfﬂﬁ
statements of foreign operations 7 RS = - - - (1,057) - (1,057) (32) (1,089)
-~ released upon disposal of -RAHERAHIEEH
discontinued operation RREE - - - - 7410 - 7410 - 7410
- released upon deregistration -REER-RHEL
of a subsidiary A hERER = = = = (46) = (46) 5 (46)

Total comprehensive incomef(expense) £Z2EUWA/(B%)

for the year, net of nil tax 2% SIREHE S - - - 6,307 (37986  (31,679) (2,341) (34,020
Issue of shares (note 27(a)(iv)) DOEGIE u£27( Jiv) 16,128 60,861 - - - - 76,989 - 76,989
Derecognition of non-controlling )M%EWM“ =1

interest upon disposal of é”ﬁﬁ@m SEERIRE

discontinued operation (note 31) (i3 = S = S S S S (3,108) (3,108)
Non-controlling interest arising on XE%?%N?%E@?H“HXTE

business combination (note 29(a) % (329(a)) - S = S S S S 23,016 23,016

16,128 60,861 - - 6,307 (37,986) 45,310 17,567 62,877

At 31 December 2016 RZB-5E
t-A=t-H 36,288 335,501 2,427 16,699 (143) (114,513) 276,259 22,185 298 444
At 1 January 2017 R=E-t&-A-8 36,288 335,501 2,427 16,699 (143) (114,513) 276,259 22,185 298 444
Loss for the year EEFE = = - - - (48823 (48823) 3,088 45,735)

Exchange differences on tranlation  # 8 50E £ KB ik 2

of financial statements of foreign ~~ HH#ZHE

operations - e = = 4 - 4 - 4
Share of exchange differences of BB AFARBEE

associates - - - - 1,397 - 1397 - 1397

Total comprehensive income/(expense) £E2ENA /(B ) -
il - - - - 1401 (4883 (47422 3088 (4433)

for the year, net of il tax
Issue of shares (note 27(a)lv)) BUESIGEAE ) 7258 21,012 - - - - 28270 - 28,270
7,258 21,012 - - 1,401 (48,823) (19,152) 3,088 (16,064)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t#
t-R=1-H 43,546 356,513 2421 16,699 1,258 (163,336) 257,107 25273 282,380
The notes on pages 93 to 215 form part of the consolidated financial ~ $93E215 B MM ot BA KR & B 1 ¥k 2 MK
statements. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FAEHETMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZE—+F+-_A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mat FHET FAT
Operating activities BT
Loss before taxation: B 754 il /&5 18
— From continuing operations — B 2T (43,846) (32,486)
— From discontinued operation —BRIEREER - (7,865)
Adjustments for: FEE
- Changes in fair value of contingent —¥BEHIARBEEZRF
consideration assets for business BE#
combination 17,971 1,393
— Changes in fair value of prepayment —BEITHE R BRI 2 IRATE
option embedded in promissory HENTESE
note issued 721 107
— Changes in fair value of consideration —¥BEAHEMREBZATE
payable for business combinations b=k 6,396 2,632
— Interest income from money lending — EESFBUA 3(a) (14,759) (14,138)
- Bank interest income —HRITFEHA = (3)
— Cumulative exchange gain reclassified — BT — KB A e
from equity to profit or loss upon mENHEEER BETIN
deregistration of a subsidiary [ Uk 25 4 - (46)
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = NS g 4 - (545)
— Finance costs —BhE AR 5(a) 2,412 405
- Amortisation of intangible assets — BB ERH 13,438 2,591
— Depreciation of property, —WZE - BEMRETE
plant and equipment 7,069 3,312
— Impairment of goodwill —EERIE 5(c) - 1,430
— Loss on disposal of discontinued —HEBERIEEEEKEIE
operation 7 = 3,867
— Loss on disposal of property, —NEWE - WEREEEE
plant and equipment 5(c) 41 2,225
— Write-off of intangible assets — MR EE 5(c) = 1,097
— Share of profits of associates — FE(RER A B A (1,040) =
— Share of profits of a joint venture —EhEE R REF (3) =
— Effect of foreign exchange rate —EXREHTEFHE
changes, net 4 67
Operating loss before working EESSEHAIZLEFR
capital changes (11,596) (35,957)
Increase in inventories FEEhn - (7)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other FE UL BR TR K H A FE U FORL A
receivables (4% 0) 6,374 (8,134)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable FEWE Fom L, (35 0) 43,372 (58,520)
Decrease in trade and other payables JEASTBR B R H At FR S BURL A (385) (1,248)
Increase in deferred income JRIEUT AL h0 2,973 980
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEMEE (B RESHE
operation 40,738 (102,886)
Interest received from money lending WEEBFEFBUA 14,503 11,525
Income tax paid: BEAATER
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —BENEENER (106) =
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid —BNRHPEREMER = (509)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESERMEL(FiA)
operating activities REEH 55,188 (91,870)

REFPREEER AR

F$H 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEHETMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-Z
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

—tFTA=T-HALFE

2017 2016
—E=—+tfF —E—X
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mat FHET FHET
Investing activities REEH
Interest received B FILE - 3
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BB KEEMEHRIE
plant and equipment = 2,300
Payment for purchase of property, BEME  BERSEZNHE
plant and equipment (4,261) (3,453)
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEWE BERXECENES
plant and equipment = (3,000)
Expenditure on projects development TH B (3,015) (24)
Net cash inflow from disposal of LEMRBARZHERAFRE
subsidiaries 31 = 52,465
Net cash outflow from asset acquisition W EE IR m i F5E 30 - (26,672)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEHB AR RS R L 58
subsidiaries 29 (41,442) (39,236)
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale & B 13 & JR #E & % X N 7018
equity securities (500) -
Net cash used in investing activities = REZEBFAARSTFE (49,218) (17,617)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of finance lease ENBEHERSELRLS
rentals paid (772) =
Interest element of finance lease ENREHERST S0
rentals paid (172) =
Interest paid 2RFE (2,240) (405)
Proceeds from issue of shares %’”‘ﬂﬂxf’ﬁﬁfr%fx 27(a) 28,270 76,989
Repayment of financial assistance Ta}aﬁfﬂﬁﬂ(?ﬁﬁj}
from government (114) (257)
New loans from a third party KE—RE=ZFTHFTER - 28,000
Repayment of loans to a third party EBET—RE=ZFNEXR - (22,000)
Net cash generated from financing RMETHHMEBRSFHE
activities 24,972 82,327
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRBESSEWHEM
cash and cash equivalents (R2) 35 30,889 (27,160)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzEER
at 1 January ReEEEY 11,500 38,725
Effect of foreign exchange ExgmgE
rate changes = (65)
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=+—BZHER
at 31 December RE%EY 19(a) 42,389 11,500
The notes on pages 93 to 215 form part of the consolidated financial FI93E215EMM T BRI E MMk Z AKX

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company has its registered office and principal place of business
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and 21st Floor, Henan Building, 90
Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and a
joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

REER

BATFHEEEFRARA(IARALD AR
HERSTMKXLEREERAT @ &
RN EEBBEEXIMER AT ([H#R
Fr1)GEME™ « KRR zidMPHEERER
FEE B 2 Holk 5 Bl ZCricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand

Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands
NEBETHZEBIHREBERE21E -

ARTARERRAT - AHBARZE
B R TIBMAH RS -

BE_Z—+F+-R=1+—RBIFELK
AMBHBRRERNRARENB AR (5
MR IARE ] ARAEBRE 2R R

BT 2R -

BRAEXRIN  GAPBRRATET
(TFAETDER - ET(TETDRERT
2 BB RAEE 2 2HE -

FTEEHEE

(a) EpHIEH
WELRENBEHRREBRERE S
R e((E85esrmagl)E
MR BEEAR BB ®REEA
(TEEMBRELER]) (BEME
HRAAEBMBREER - HESE
ZA([FBGHER ) EREZSH
) BALBREMANSTRIAIINLE
BRARGHZBEHREMBRE o %
ZLREMEHRERIMETH R TGEM
FHE MR GEMETRA AR

TE 2 BB -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017

93



94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- Contingent consideration assets or liabilities arising
from a business combination (see note 2(f)); and

- Derivative financial instruments (see note 2(i)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(c)

financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these impact on the accounting policies of
the Group. However, additional disclosure has been included
in note 19(b) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 38).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(m)(ii)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control,
management, including participation in the financial and

over its

operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g) and
2(m)(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12, Income taxes, and HKAS 19, Employee benefits,
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based
payment awards are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2, Share-based payment; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations, are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Business combinations (Continued)
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's
previously held interest in the acquire; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
arising from a business combination for which the acquisition
date is before 1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement, or HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration arising from a business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, with
the corresponding changes in fair value being recognised in
profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see note 2(d)) less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or based on
a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(m)(i)).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(m)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

()

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(m)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings 12 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2(m)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date when they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as

follows:

Development costs 3 years
Technical know-how 5 years
Programming codes 5 years
Online platforms 5 years
Software systems 5 years

Mobile games 2 to 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(I) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment

or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form

of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(m)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of financial assets, including
investments in equity securities, trade and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets, including
investments in equity securities, trade and
other receivables (Continued)

(i)

the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would
not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the debtor or
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor or borrower;

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost; or

observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the portfolio,
including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets, including
investments in equity securities, trade and
other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 2(e)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets, including
investments in equity securities, trade and
other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets, including
investments in equity securities, trade and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables, loans
receivable and interest receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against these financial assets directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(ii)

(n)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent merchandises for resale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and

comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2(m)

().

Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of interest receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2(m)

().
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Trade and other receivables

(r)

(s)

(t)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Deferred income

Deferred income represents contractual billings/amount due
in excess of recognised revenue resulting from services yet
to be rendered or in respect of the unexpired terms of the
relevant contracts/arrangements, or for which the applicable
revenue recognition criteria are not yet satisfied. Revenue
is recognised and deferred income is released to profit or
loss when the relevant services are rendered or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the relevant contracts/
arrangements, or when the applicable revenue recognition
criteria are satisfied.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(w) Income tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(x)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Provision of software platform includes:

M

3)

Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and titles has
been passed, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the maintenance service contract;

Software rental and subscription income from
software application and website development,
which are recognised when the relevant services
are rendered; and

Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development
deriving from providing software application
and electronic learning platform to customers,
which is recognised when services are rendered.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in
respect of the deferred income over the term of
the service contract.

2

TESHEE(E)

(y) W=

Yo i B WSk B MR AR (B 2 X P ERT
B - MBS ERAREE
Bz R (AniE A ) B vl SE b &t
£ WATRIA T AR ERER

() FEREMFEER -
(1) HEEMEHRERE
ZREBNBHEREER
TEER  —RREM
NETEPERXNESR
RERRREL - ERE
EAMKRETES B
LER(BREREE®E
ms) NERBEME

M BRI

(2) BRHEWREFIITH
ARSI AT RT St &
AR%5 & #0512 4 AR 75
BRI HRIAE R EEE

7 .
STV

() EHER - \uFEEZ
FHRE RATBRAR
REEEREESRER
X

(4) BIHER - HuEnk
ABULFA B 2 WA R B [
EPRHIERNRE
FEBY¥E - WARE
HRBG R FER - BRR
FE WAz W g T AR
BEOBEREBERNE

27
o °©

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(2)

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. When a loan and
interest receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

(iii)  Income from mobile gaming includes:

(1) Income from online game platform owners, which
is recognised on net basis from platform owners
when the paying players purchase the game
credits for the mobile games after deducting pre-
determined commissions;

(2)  Service income from the provision of mobile
games development and related services are
recognised when the services are rendered; and

(3) Revenue of licensing income is recognised in
accordance with the terms of agreements.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

(aa)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on the acquisition of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

(ab) Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ab) Discontinued operation (Continued)

(ac)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ac) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1

4)

(8)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTTBER(EA)
(CONTINUED)
(ad) Segment reporting (ad) 7 HHEH
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment KESEREETFEREARES

3

item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services
supplied to customers from the provision of software
platform, interest income earned from the money lending
business and income generated from mobile games
development, as follows:

3

7
MEEZEZHE  DRARAKEH
TESRTHEEREBEHRMH LA
EAREESBEEELBHDEE
R WEHEE KRB 2 BEHR -

ok

D

ERERZELED TG BMEH
SEMMmMAE  RIFFEIIMAE
BOGESE  TEEGEUCE
m X lRAEMHE - BEPALSEAR
DIHEMKERRB L - ARE
EREME - BRIFERZEZED
BT & LK BCERIAT T A

Wz K2 EHRE

(a)

Wy 2

B RRHERGTFaHETE
FHERERBHHEER  BE
EBSH S WA R RK B T
BEMAT

2017 2016
—ET—+tfF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Continuing operations BEKSEER
Provision of software platform RESHEE 14,561 19,689
Interest income from money lending MUE TSR B A 14,759 14,138
Mobile gaming income FHIERIUA 35,144 1
64,464 33,938

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,

which are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three (2016: three) reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's

reportable segments:

Continuing operations

- Software platform — developing and marketing of
patented server based technology and the provision
of communications software platform and software

related services.

- Money lending — provision of money lending business
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which is a money lender licensed in Hong Kong under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws

of Hong Kong).

- Mobile gaming — game publishing, development of
mobile game, application, related intellectual property
and platform, and provision of related solutions.

Discontinued operation

- Software platform - the custom-made software
development services including urban grid management
system, internet marketing of online peer-to-peer

("P2P") lending system and other projects.

3

Wz 2 #R R & ()

(b) &S

REERE T 22 EREARIEH

ERRZ BN REEEHZEDE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTIIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHERDEHRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2EBFE (&)
(i) Business segment ()  EESE
2017
—EB-tF
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B4
RELSERE Bexy
Software Money Mobile Software
platform lending gaming platform Total
BH4T A & FRIES LGRS A5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Revenue from external customers  RENRZ P 7 iz 14,561 14,759 35,144 = 64,464

Reportable segment (loss)/profit ~ BIRELHR(E5HE) /i Fl

("adjusted EBITDA") (note) ([ #8352 EBITDA )
(Pis%) (5,526) 13,211 21,616 - 29,301
Depreciation and amortisation wEMEE 771 468 12,950 - 14,189
Income tax (credit)/expense R (EE)/AX (99) 16 1,972 = 1,889
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 4,044 124,799 59,626 - 188,469
Additions to non-current assets ErRBBELEM 72 312 3,103 - 3,487
Reportable segment liabilities IRENHER (7,197) (416) (11,489) - (19,102)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB TTHIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WERDEHME(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) 2##HE (&
() FHEDE(E)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Business segment (Continued)

2016

“E-RE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
BRI
HELE RN BeEH
Software Money Mobile Software
platform lending gaming platform Total
BTa Hif& FHE BHTa @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue from external customers  REIREFE 2 Uiz 19,689 14,138 1A 521 34,459
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ~ BIRELER(E5HE) /Al
("adjusted EBITDA") (note) ([ HZEBITDA))
(B$%) (1,503) 718 (2,249) (7,251) (10,285)
Depreciation and amortisation nEREE 2,332 42 21 614 3,009
Write-off of intangible assets WEapEE 1,097 - - - 1,097
Income tax (credit)/expense ERER) /X (150) 59 (337) 372 (56)
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 7,527 183,068 72,766 - 263,361
Additions to non-current assets FREEELEN 169 1,306 34 11 1,520
Reportable segment liabilities IRENHERE (4,483) (475) (12,877) = (17,835)
Note: The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss is Mzt - BHRHEEFBEMEA

“adjusted EBITDA", i.e, “adjusted earnings before interest,

taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where “depreciation

and amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses

in non-current assets.

The comparative figures for 2016 are amended to conform

to current year's measurement and presentation.

ZEHE A [#EFAZEEBITDALRD
[BRFIE - Bi1E - EREE
ALEF ] o H (78 R
WRABRIEERDEEZR
BEE -

TE-RFHRETFELE
B UANAREEZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

Wz 2 #R R & ()

(b) 7 &R E (&)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) AI#HED M - Ham
profit or loss, assets and liabilities BERABEZ K
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue from continuing operations @B K& £ 2 W
Reportable segment revenue wE D E ke 64,464 34,459
Segment revenue from BRI e %o Sl
discontinued operation - (521)
64,464 33,938
Loss for the year FEBE
Reportable segment profit/(loss) from — AI3RE D BB KL
continuing operations Emn, (&) 29,301 (3,034)
Segment loss from discontinued ERIEREERBZDE
operation E1E = (7,251)
Share of profits of associates FE(RES & 2 Al A 1,040 =
Unallocated corporate income and AOMEERAR
expenses sz (76,076) (30,010)
(45,735) (40,295)
Total assets EEHE
Reportable segment assets from AHRE D MAFFELEET
continuing operations ZEE 188,469 263,361
Interests in associates N /NI 34,901 -
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 182,360 188,510
405,730 451,871
Total liabilities EEAE
Reportable segment liabilities from Al RS D BN B L X TS
continuing operations ZBfE 19,102 17,835
Unallocated corporate liabilities ANETEAR 104,248 135,592
123,350 153,427
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include changes in fair value of consideration payable
and contingent consideration assets for business
combination, staff costs and legal and professional
fees of head office. The unallocated corporate assets
and liabilities mainly include goodwill, property,
plant and equipment, deposits and prepayments,
deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and
equipment, contingent consideration assets for business
combination, consideration payable for business
combination and interest-bearing borrowings. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision-
maker for the purposes of performance assessment and
resource allocation.

3

Wz 2 #R R & ()

(b) 7 &R E (&)

(i)

AJ#E D E M as - Bt
RERREZHEE)

AOBEERARHAZEER
BREEBEHERKERT
EEBHRAAREEE &
WEEBTRARGHER
ZERREEER - KAHE
CEEERBBEAEERE
HEWE - BEREME
ERREMKE BEW
¥ BERREEBDAR
L EBANHRANREE
E - EBA 0N R E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii)

Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’'s property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and
interests in associates and joint venture (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the assets, in case of property, plant and
equipment, the location of the operation to which they
are allocated, in case of intangible assets and goodwill,
and the location of operations, in the case of associates
and joint venture.

3

Wz 2 #R R & ()

(b) 7 &R E (&)

(iif)

EEHREBES

NREFIBRG)ANEE KB I
REPZRARINAEEZ
ME - BELRE BYE
E - BEUARREERRR
BERRzER([EEFR
PEAE|)FEMEZ AR -
BEFRDEEMAEMRIR
BEERMEME (AME -
BER&ENS)  SERE
WwH(ABLEERAEM
T ) DA B 8 P A b B (LA B

ERARAEATTEES -

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMRAEF 2 EEFRBDEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
=2t —TXF ZEB-tF "—TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT TET FHET
Hong Kong &E 59,811 33,929 219,858 223,320
Mainland China AR A 27 530 5 8
The Netherlands AT BE - - 34,901 -
Others HAity 4,626 - - -
64,464 34,459 254,764 223,328

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEko#SEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2EBFE (&)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (iii) R ERRFEES (&)
(Continued)
Revenue from major customers, each of whom REFEEPHKHE(ZFEYH
accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue, is set R EE10% 3k A £ ) 5
out below: T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Customer A BZEA 7,000 N/A 3: A
Customer B ZFEB N/ATRE A* 3,511
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more # HEE M a1 ME B 10%
of the total revenue. AL ©
4 OTHER INCOME, NET 4 HMWAGHE)
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZFE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HEH B QR Was(HI5E31) - 545
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified from BUEEMR —RMB A REAK
equity to profit or loss upon deregistration BEEFHIBREREZ
of a subsidiary Bl = 46
Sundry income HMETEIA 336 22
336 613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: MRIEAIEEDS IR T 718 -
(a) Finance costs: (a) BB :
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations HEKEXEL
Finance charges on obligations under MEEERIENTIEE R
finance leases 172 -
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings #8417 E 3% R H b & &5 & 2,240 405
2,412 405
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration (b) EIRFA(BERFEEEMN 2
(note 8)): (M¥&ES8)) -
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TENEMER 28,542 24,054
Contributions to defined contribution Bl E R IRET &L X
retirement plan 1,405 1,211
29,947 25,265

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

L Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5

(c) Other items:

BRBLATE 1R (4])

(c) HAIER :

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Continuing operations BEKEEL
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT & 966 690
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE Y 13,438 2,006
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BEREETE
and equipment 7,069 3,283
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERREZ
plant and equipment 518 41 2,225
Impairment losses on goodwill B R EE 18 - 1,430
Operating lease charges: minimum TR T HE
lease payments SIEAHFAE 5,289 4,865
Write-off of intangible assets MeHEEEE = 1,097

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

6 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING

OPERATIONS

6 BECEXRBHEBMER

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HEBZXRZHIERE

profit or loss represents:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Current tax - Hong Kong BB IE — & #
Provision for the year NEEZRE 58 59
Over-provision in respect of prior years NEFERERE (42) (26)
16 33
Deferred tax expense/(credit) EEHERS,(ER)
(note 24(b)) (FtzE24(b))
Origination and reversal of A R BB
temporary differences 1,873 (461)
Actual tax expense/(credit) ERHIEFAS(ER) 1,889 (428)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated
at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits

for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the respective tax jurisdictions.

No provision for Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") has been made for 2017 as the
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC have estimated tax losses

for the year (2016: HK$Nil).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)
6 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING 6 HEREXBHBMEMN
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) (%)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) (b) BKBEX (&) EIHEE
and accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BREEHRYER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—XF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAERT FHT
Loss before taxation from continuing SECEETE CBRBIATE S
operations (43,846) (32,486)
Notional tax credit on loss before taxation, BRHATERHEZETIER S
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BTG EEBNERE
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 16.5%(ZZF—XF : 16.5%) (7,234) (5,360)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 B2 2,256 1,540
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBIMAZ HETE (56) (2)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not MARERREARIEEEZ
recognised Mg e 1,961 2,778
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BERBTAERRIBEEE Y
recognised previously M e e = (46)
Tax effect of temporary differences not ARG EZE
recognised Db+ 857 255
Over-provision in respect of prior years NAFERERE (42) (26)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  Fff /@A &7~ @ H1 &~ 272 4,147 433
Actual tax expense/(credit) ERHERYS,(ER) 1,889 (428)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

7 LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED 7 CRIEREERCFEERE
OPERATION

On 9 March 2016, the Company entered into a conditional sale —E-REZANR - ARFEFLEBH
EREBERATRENBAR(HBATA
PEE DA ERGEEERHR - A
FEETZNEREBETS - BIERT
urban grid management system, internet marketing and other BRERE  EMEEHNIEMER - %
projects. The disposal was completed on 30 June 2016, on which BEHEER-ZE—REFRA=tHEX -

and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire interest in Native
Hope Limited and its subsidiaries (together, “NH Group”), which is
principally engaged in the provision of software platform including

date control of the operations passed to the acquirer. Details of the RIH - GEEFTEEBENRET - B
assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the loss on
disposal, are disclosed in note 31.

The results and cash flows from the discontinued operation
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out below:

BEHEEBERABMFEZSFHERRZ
SHEITAZHBO R RE -

ERIEREEBEERRSREGHAR
ECE-REFTHA=+—HIEFEHKSE
BaF)EINT

HK$'000
FAT
Loss for the year from FECRIEREEK
discontinued operation: [
Revenue U =5 521
Other revenue HAtb Uiz 8
Expenses -3 (4,527)
Loss before taxation BT A BT 18 (3,998)
Income tax expense S (372)
Loss from operating activities, net of tax KEEB S -
AR A (4,370)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation, HE BRI R ETBETE -
net of nil tax (note 31) B ZE (FFE31) (3,867)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation FEORIEEEEBFEBE (8,237)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED 7 BRIEREERCCFERFE

OPERATION (CONTINUED) (&)
HK$'000
FAET
Attributable to: BT AL FE4h :
— owners of the Company —ARRpEEB A (6,759)
- non-controlling interests — FEIERR R (1,478)
(8,237)
Cash flows from discontinued operation: BRIEREEBESRE -
Operating activities SR (8,701)
Investing activities wEEY (10)
Financing activities BEEED =
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on EXFHHRERRASE
cash and cash equivalents B E (44)
Net cash outflow for the year FERS L FE (8,755)

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of BEEBQMEMEIIMNE - Aal(HK
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies BRESMEER) RINE2FRGEM EH
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation MBI BECESMEHT -
and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:
Salaries, allowance Retirement
Directors' fees and benefitsinkind ~ Discretionary bonuses  scheme contributions Total
FEL ik §e RERENNG RiEka RiFGHHR it
2017 2016 217 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE CEE IB-tE T ZE-tF DT IEtE ST SEtE CTE
HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
T TEn Tén Tér | Tém TEr @ TEm  TEn TErn  TEn
Present directors RfEE
Executive directors ynEes
Chan Kwun Chung (note 1) BRa () - - 557 - - - 14 - 571 -
Chan Wai Kit [ = - 1,080 1,080 - 52 18 18 1,098 1,150
Lee Cheung Yuet, Horace (note 2) ZEH(Hh) = = > - - - - _ - -
Independent non-executive directors BUEgE
Fok Kin Fung, Eric (note 3) ﬁm(ﬁﬁuﬁ/ 120 100 - = - = - - 120 100
Leung Man Chun (note 4) i uA4/ 120 102 - - - - - - 120 102
Pang Siu Yin (note 5) ZAB (WS - - - - - - - - - -
Former directors HfES
Executive directors 48z
Hung Tat Chi, Alan (note 6) P iR - - 79 299 - = 4 15 8 314
Mui Yuk Wah (note 7) BEE(N) - - 132 512 - - 5 16 137 528
Wong Chi Yan {note 8) B () = = 754 965 - 112 15 18 769 1,095
Guo Kegin (note 9) (o) - - - 206 - = - 4 - 210
Lam Kit Yan (note 10) W23 (H10) - - - 87 - - - - - 87
Zhang Weijie (note 11) FiEg (M) - - - 29 - - - 4 - 3
Independent non-executive directors ENE Ly
Chui Kwong Kau (note 12) EXIR(E12) - 5 - - - - - - - 5
Chui Chi Yun, Robert (note 13) ERC(E) - 21 - - - - - - - i
Lam Wing Tai (note 14) WikR(BE14) - 6 - - - - - - - 6
Lee Nim Wai (note 15) F2&(s) 120 % - - - - - - 120 %
Zeng Shiquan (note 16) SRR (KE16) - 12 - - - - - - - 12
360 361 2,602 3378 - 164 56 75 3,018 3978

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

No directors waived any emoluments during the year (2016:

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

Appointed on 20 March 2017

Appointed on 5 February 2018

Appointed on 2 March 2016

Appointed on 23 February 2016

Appointed on 15 January 2018

Appointed on 2 March 2016 and resigned on 20 March 2017

Appointed on 23 February 2016 and resigned on 20 March 2017

Resigned on 12 October 2017

Resigned on 9 March 2016

Appointed on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016

Resigned on 9 March 2016

Resigned on 16 March 2016

Resigned on 2 March 2016

Resigned on 18 January 2016

Appointed on 16 March 2016 and resigned on 15 January 2018

Appointed on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016

HKS$Nil).

E=ME (&)

BT -

1. RZE—tF=RA-+HEEE
2. R-E-N\F_AAREZE

3. R-ZB—R"FZA-HEZHE

4. RZE-—RNF_AZ+=HEZHE
5. R-ZZB-N\F-A+HREZE

6. RZE-—RNE=-ZA_RABZEIERR_-Z
—+HF=A -1+ HE/E

7. RZE—RNF-_A-+ZHEZIRK_-Z
—tF=A=+HEE

8. RZT—tF+A+=HEE
9. R-E—XE=ANBEE

ZZE-R"E-—ATNBAEZERR=-F
—RNE-A-+=RAFE

1. RIZZE-—AF=ZALBEE
12, RZE-REZATRERE
13. RIZE-—AF=ZAZHEHE
14. RZIZE-—ARFE-ATNBHE

15. RZZE—AEZA+BEZIRR=-FT
—NE—A+RAEE

16. RZZ—A"FE—A+N\BEZEERR=F
—RNEZA-+=HBHE

BEREENFAREEAMSLH(ZF
—RETER) -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 &HSHMAL

RASEREAERFMALES =4
(ZF—RF: ZR)EEZHMSFERW
FEBHEE - BB (ZF—RF : MA)
ERIALZMEEEET

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2016:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2016:
two) individuals are as follows:

2017 2016

—g—t& -3 i&

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other emoluments He REAMmM S 1,171 1,119
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 36 29
1,207 1,148

HitpmE (ZF—AF : MB)REHHHZ
ERALZBEN FATEHE :

The emoluments of the other two (2016: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

142

2017 2016

—E—+tfF AN

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH BB AE

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 % 021,000,0007 7T 2 2

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETIIR)

10 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$48,823,000 (2016: HK$37,986,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 1,084,166,000 (2016: 728,201,000) in

The calculation is based on loss for the year from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$48,823,000 (2016: HK$31,227,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 1,084,166,000 (2016: 728,201,000) in

(i)
issue during the year.

(i) From continuing operations
issue during the year.

(iii)

From discontinued operation

The calculation is based on loss for the year from the
discontinued operation attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$Nil (2016: profit of HK$6,759,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 1,084,166,000 (2016: 728,201,000) in
issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December

2017 and 2016 is the same as the basic loss per share as there

were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

10 BREE
SREREE

(a)

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

KEFFER D LI
FE
FREABBEBDIERAARA
ABEBEARBEFEEIE
48,823,000 7t ( = F — ~
4 1 37,986,000 7T ) M 4F
WE BT @R 2 NETH
2 #71,084,166,000 % ( — =
— /N 1 728,201,0000% ) &

st
B o
B

KB FF B SR
BRERNEBIETIRAR R
EABLHBECLEB 2F
[EE51848,823,000/8 L (=&
— 754 ¢ 31,227,000 7T) K
FRNEETEBRRZ NEFE
9 8149 1,084,166,000 f% ( =
T — X4 1 728,201,000 %)
FTE

KB BRI E RS

BREREETIRA QA%
BABGERIEEEER 2
FEBEZETL(ZZ—FX

4 @ 3% F16,759,000 7T ) K&
FANEETEBRRZ MEF
¥ 49 1,084,166,000 f% ( =
T — N4 : 728,201,0000% )
ETE .

(b) SREEER
m%ﬁﬁEﬁEE%éE 54
B BE-Z—LFR-F—AF

+=

A=+— Eii&ﬁ’ﬂﬂxﬁ&é

B RESREARSEER -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y% BERSE

144

Computers
Land and Leasehold Furniture and other Motor
buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
ERR
THREF HENERE HAR%EE HitR "E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEx FAx T FHL TEx
Cost KA
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H - 51 247 1,415 6,093 7,806
Additions RE 49,484 2,503 450 250 250 52,937
Additions through business ~ BBEBAGIFE
combination (note 29) GEZE) = 42 29 76 = 147
Disposals HE - = (32) (169) (4,780) (4,981)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = (15) (78) (218) (558) (869)
Exchange adjustments HNERE - - ) (12) - (14)
At31December2016and ~ R=F-~F+-A=+-H
1 January 2017 k=Z-t&-R-H 49,484 2,581 614 1,342 1,005 55,026
Additions NE o 956 2,528 241 5478 9,203
Disposals HE = = (54) (3) (57)
Exchange adjustments HNERE - - - 8 - 8
At 31 December 2017 “E—+E+-fA=1-H 49,484 3,537 3,088 1,588 6,483 64,180
Accumulated depreciation 3t TERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 R-B-xE-A-A - 35 17 849 489 1,490
Charge for the year REEHR 2,405 79 70 358 400 3312
Eliminated on disposals R ERL = = (8) (129) (319) (456)
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR - (7) (52) (141) (248) (448)
Exchange adjustments HNE R - - 3) (10) - (13)
At 31 December 2016 and - EtZA=T-H
1 January 2017 f +£-A-A 2,405 107 124 927 322 3,885
Charge for the year MEW 4,124 1,063 440 282 1,160 7,069
Eliminated on disposals R ERL = = (13) 3) = (16)
Exchange adjustments INEFHE - - - 8 - 8
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+-A=1—H 6,529 1,170 551 1,214 1,482 10,946
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%+-A=1+—H 42,955 2,367 2,537 374 5,001 53,234
At 31 December 2016 WZE-~E+-A=1-H 47,079 2,474 490 415 683 51,141

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, land and buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of HK$42,955,000 (2016: HK$47,079,000) have
been pledged to secure interest-bearing borrowings granted to the
Group (see note 22).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, additions to motor
vehicles financed by new finance leases were HK$4,942,000 (2016:
HK$Nil). At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of
motor vehicles held under finance leases was HK$4,490,000 (2016:
HK$Nil).

All land and buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong
under medium-term leases.

11 W% - BB R&RE (&)

R-TE—+E+-_f=+—08 x&EE+
i N F 2 BREI{E42,955,0008 L ( — &
— N4 1 47,079,000 7T ) B I A EE
RAEEEZERZHEER(RHEE22) -

HE_Z—+E+-A=+—HILEE -
AFTe B HERMNARETE A4,942,000
BIL(ZE—XNF: THL) - RBEH
KX BEMEBETAFAENEEER
4,490,000/ C(ZF—RF « TBT) °

FIBEAREEN LTI REBFAREE - AT
HHERE -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

146

(LABTTYR)
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BREEE
Development Technical ~ Programming Online Software Mobile
costs  know-how codes platforms systems games Total
BRAK BT BAGE Brya BHZS FHER Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ThR T TR Thn Tt Tk AR
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (0)
(M3 (a)) GiED) (MEE (b)) (M3 (b)) (M3t (b)) (M3(c)
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 RIE-"E-A-H 6,114 1,023 2,663 1,104 21,925 - 32,829
Additions through business ERERAMFAE(Wi20)
combination (note 29) - - - - - 66,768 66,768
Additions through internal EANTERAE
development - - - - 2% = 24
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (3812) 5 (305) (501) (21,671) = 26,289)
Write-off (note (¢)) M (FEe) (124) - (370) (603) - - (1,097)
Exchange adjustments SMEFE - - - - (278) - (278)
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-AETZA=1-H
1 January 2017 R=Z-t%-5-H 2178 1,023 1,988 - - 66,768 71,957
Additions through internal EARPERAE
development - - - - - 3,015 3,015
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1-H 2178 103 1,988 - - 69,783 74972
Accumulated amortisation ZHBERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7"E-A-H 4853 615 1,396 335 12,565 - 19,764
Charge for the year TEEMR 1137 205 498 166 585 = 2,591
Disposal of subsiciaries HEHBAT (3812) = (305) (501) (12.973) = (17,591)
Exchange adjustments SNEFE - - - - (177) - (177)
At 31 Decerber 2016 and RZB-R"E+ZA=1-H
1 January 2017 R=E-t£-A-R 2,178 820 1,589 - - - 4587
Charge for the year TEENR S 203 399 S = 12,836 13,438
At 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+ZA=1-H 2178 1,03 1,988 - - 12,836 18,025
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 RE—+F+-A=1-H = S = = = 56,947 56,947
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+-A=1-H - 203 399 - - 66,768 67,370

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Development costs

Development costs represent expenditure incurred for
developing electronic software products that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(k) and are internally generated.

Technical know-how, programming codes,

online platforms and software systems

All of the Group's technical know-how, programming codes,
online platforms and software systems were purchased as
part of business combinations in prior years.

On 30 June 2016, the Group disposed the entire equity
interest in NH Group and the carrying amount of software
systems (comprising the urban grid management system and
the P2P lending system) of HK$8,698,000 was derecognised.

Mobile games

On 25 October 2016, the Group acquired the 60% equity
interest in First Surplus Investments Ltd. (“First Surplus”) and
its subsidiaries (together, “FS Group”). FS Group is principally
engaged in game publishing, development of mobile game,
application, related intellectual property and platform, and
provision of related solutions. Intangible assets of mobile
games of HK$66,768,000 was identified and arose from this
business combination.

Expenditure incurred for developing mobile games has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(k).

No amortisation charge of mobile games was recognised in
2016 as the intangible assets were not yet available for use
prior to 31 December 2016.

12 BEREE(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EEIDEN
BREAEREEFRUEERME
A% FRRAXEREEFXK
R (BRMEE2(k)) HER RN AP E
K o

HitasE  BXHEE - @LF
ERBHZRS

REBEREORNOS  RARK
B BLFAREMNRAENBE
FEBEALEA NS -

R-ZZ—RFRA=1H  A&H
HERREBEB Z 280 @ WL
IR AR (BRERMERLE
ERARLEHHERERG) RASHE
8,698,000/ 7T °

F IR
RZFE—AF+AZ+HH K
& B U B First Surplus Investments
Ltd. ([First Surplus]) R EHE QA
(RBRIFSEE]) 260% M i
FSEBEFEREEETIT - FHIE
B FERERF - MEMBERLT
AR IARRHBEEERTE -
F- 1 % B, M0 S8 2 & EE 66,768,000
TTAER  WEZEBEMHME
Ao

REBEFREBNASEREMNT
20BN & R BURHER -

MR -_FT-—R"F+-_A=1t—HZ
AR EESL RAHER - BEn
“E-NEFREREREER -

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

12 BEREE(E)

(d) The amortisation charges for the year are included in (d) EREBHEEYEIHAGAEBEERRN
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of B [1TEFA ] -
profit or loss.
(e) Impairment loss and write-off (e) WEEERME
On 30 September 2016, the management realised that RZE—R"FNLA=1H BRE
certain electronic software previously developed does not fit REBEMENE TEFHHFEILT
to the requirements of the customers and does not generate R& %P ERK R AR RE M 2 A AT
as much revenue as previously expected. As a result, the EEIR M - Elt - BEFERGZER
carrying amount of the electronic software of HK$1,097,000 [E{E1,097,0008 TR TR X 12
was fully written off in “Administrative expenses”. B o
13 GOODWILL 13 HE
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January ®—AR—H 109,669 90,510
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR FTEA - 89,433
Impairment loss B E 18 = (1,430)
Disposal of subsidiaries o BT B 2 A = (67,972)
Exchange adjustments HNGE B = (872)
At 31 December W+=—RB=+—H 109,669 109,669

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

13 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 13 HE(E)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to country of operation and
operating segment as follows:

BEBECRESELAENZRE
A
HESEEARAEBRELEMERR L
EnHBRlzReELBU([REELE
fr]) - FHEWMT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBxT FAET

Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit A") A —FB(EZAL 20,236 20,236
Mobile gaming — Hong Kong (“Unit B”) FeprR— &8 ([8EARB)) 89,433 89,433
109,669 109,669

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 as follows:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based on value-in-
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3.0% (2016:
3.0%). This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 20.0% (2016:
22.2%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on Unit
A’s past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development including the fluctuation in software platform
business in the current economic environment in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount of Unit A
calculated based on value-in-use exceeded carrying value by
approximately HK$1,658,000.

EEXCORBEB LS ENFEIEHNHE
ZPREE  WATFR ¢

B{7A
BNAZARESEIEFEABECTE
BT ZSHENREEEEBHEZH
BHEE  FRARERAFHENREREE
BIEST - AFEMIRSRETERMGF N
BEFEHERERI 0% (ZZT—RNF :3.0%)
HE - FriE A 2B RETBBEN AT
BEBZERAFHEER - BERENR
20.0% (=T —/NF 1 22.2%) Z BhIR REL
e FERZANREARBIA - WikikE
BUABRAZEBEERR - iTEFEREER
Rz HtEZBHRISEBEESRA TR
HEr(RIETEEHERE) « AT EREN
ANBAERBAKEEBYHMBERNEE
(BREEBEBCERETRGFEER
B ED) o

R-E—+F+-A=+—H " BHUAK
FABEFENA KL ESBEEHEMEY
1,658,000/ 7T ©

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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13 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

Unit A (Continued)

The budgeted sales growth rate within the five-year period is set at
an average of 25% per annum.

Had Unit A’s budgeted sales growth been 1.24% lower than
management'’s estimates, after incorporating the consequential
effects of the change on the other variables used to measure the
recoverable amount, the carrying amount of Unit A would be equal
to its recoverable amount.

Based on the assessment results, the directors are of the opinion
that there are no indications that the carrying amount of the
goodwill has to be impaired.

Unit B

The recoverable amount of the Unit B is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of
3.0% (2016: 3.0%) which is consistent with the forecast included
in industry reports. The growth rates used do not exceed the
long-term average growth rates for the business in which Unit B
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
22.2% (2016: 23.2%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to Unit B. Other key assumption for the value-
in-use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on Unit B's
past performance and management’s expectation for the market
development including the fluctuation in mobile gaming business in
the current economic environment in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
Unit B to exceed its recoverable amount.

Based on the assessment results, the directors are of the opinion
that there are no indications that the carrying amount of the
goodwill has to be impaired.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

13 HEA)

HEEEcEEeELEENZRE
B (8)

BE7AE)
REHMNEREERERE AEFETY
25% -°

MEMANTREHEERRER ERHE
1.24%  RAEGHGEMARFERN KOS
MEBMEENTER  BUANKEE
HIEERE AR B S -

ENFHEER  EZRRLBIRRAR
TEENEEEDRE -

(/B

BBz AR ECEIEFEREBEZFEE
T REENRETEEM ETKTE
g ERREREHENRSRETEIE
17 AFENBLRENERAGET INET
HEERI0%N(ZT—NEF :3.0%)HE
(KRB EETERSHER -0 - ATE
Az ERETBBEMBAIEEELE 2™
BREAFHEER - RERETIIE22.2%
(ZZE—RF 1 23.2%) 2B R K[| -
Fi{E Az BhIR R ARRFIAT « W AR By
BEMZHBERE - st E R EERER
ZEMEBREFRBRESRAREER
(BIEBEEHERE)  ZETEREMNBA
BARALEEBHMBERNBE(R
FEEBRROEIR R FRBEE KR
&) o

EERERERR2EAITLEDETES
EYEMBZREEBBEAEIRERE -

AERFHEAER  EERAR/LETRRAR
TEHENEEEDRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14 BEQTRIES
On 13 April 2017, the Group, through Profile Venture Limited, RZE—tFWOA+T=R A&EEFER

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire
equity interest in Stars Ventures Limited (see note 29(b)). Stars
Ventures Limited indirectly owned 49% of the equity interest of
each of the following entities, which are unlisted corporate entities
whose quoted market price is not available. These entities are
regarded as associates of the Group and are accounted for using

the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

Name of associates

BENAEE

Place of incorporation
and business

o ST B S 3 B

Profile Venture Limited (&RA & —E2 &
BB A &) Y B Stars Ventures Limited AT
BREHE (R MIFE29(b)) ° Stars Ventures
Limited fE 5 #E B SA T B8 F 28 1949 % IR
E(ZEERARLIMOXER  HuMm
MIHME)

U EBEIRR SR EE 2B

BRR MEBERBEENGRE M BREK

AR ©

Particulars of
issued and
paid-up capital
ERTHERAFS

Principal activity

TELETED

Fore Freedom B.V. (“FF")

Fore Freedom B.V.([FF])

XXLnet B.V. (“XXLnet")

XXLnet B.V. ([XXLnet])

The Netherlands

el

The Netherlands

el

18,000 shares of
EUR1T each

18,000 i {7
BR1EUT

80,000 shares of
EUR1 each
80,000/ B 17
BRIBTT

Construction and management
of fibre optic internet
networks
ERRER AT RS

Provision of internet, telephone
and other ancillary services
REEEHAE  BEK

H A E R

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of the associates, adjusted

for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to
the carrying amounts at 31 December 2017 in the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed below:

14 BEQNTER(E)

EREABRZEAEZEFELAR - W HE
RZE—+F+RA=+—BZHaMH
BRAZREEEL A B2 QR
BRI ERENT

FF XXLnet
FF XXLnet
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross amount of the associates B NT2EH
Current assets MENEE 1,747 1,205
Non-current assets IEMENEE 45,863 801
Current liabilities mEEE (5,288) (532)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (17,410) -
Net assets EEFHE 24,912 1,474
Revenue Wz 7,521 5,287
Profit for the period HA 5 A 1,197 926
Other comprehensive income H 2wl A 2,754 98
Total comprehensive income ZEWA LTS 3,951 1,024
Reconciled to the Group's interests BEAEBENBE QR ZEREL
in associates HER
Gross amount of net assets of the associates BERNREEFEER 24,912 1,474
The Group's effective interest REEE R L 49% 49%
The Group's share of net assets of the associates 7% B fE(FHt2 N a2 BEFE 12,207 722
Goodwill FEES 10,193 11,779
Carrying amount in the consolidated fRe B mATRHEREE
financial statements 22,400 12,501

Note: The information regarding the financial performance for the year

presented above represents the post-acquisition results.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

15

16

17

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15

On 6 February 2017, Top Banana Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, established Grand Surplus HK Limited with two other
joint venturers. Grand Surplus HK Limited was incorporated in Hong
Kong with issued and paid-up capital of 7,000 shares of HK$0.06
cent each and is principally engaged in website development and
related services.

INVESTMENT IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 16
EQUITY SECURITIES

At 31 December 2017, the Group invested in an unlisted entity
whose quoted market price is not available.

REE ATz R

RZE—tF-_AH 5EBRAA
(—FHEE2ENE A R)) 5w E H b i
& A AR Grand Surplus HK Limited °
Grand Surplus HK Limited A & 7 & B
o HE BT REBEMNRKRAAET,0001RE
B20.06 8Lz kfn - MEFEZHEFHER
BEREERY -

REAHHERAERE S

RIZB—+F+ZA=+—0 AEEK
ERN—RALETERER  EYEDSR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BWERFR R H B
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF ZEF—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Trade receivables JEULBR 3R 2,398 4,814
Deposits and prepayments e RIERHR 1,931 6,367
Other receivables H b fE W 5k 469 50
Amount due from a key management personnel fEUWEZEIE A B 2 78 49 -
4,847 11,231

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables, apart from certain
deposits of HK$996,000 (2016: HK$878,000), are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

Br & %8 /996,000 L (ZF — N F -
878,000 7T) 2 & T1RE I - AEEEFT
BRI R b e R - TEEA R — &
N E s ER A -

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

P Wi B R e L e P W R (7

AR 70 47
RS AR RE - BUARRIRE
FRAHRMGBRBRAEZ Rk
AT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
775 2,217

1,372 1,364

131 522

104 541

16 170

2,398 4,814

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17

(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis (a)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:
Within 1 month LR —1EA
More than 1 but less than 3 months BB —ERELR=EA
More than 3 but less than 6 months BEBE=EABLRNEA
More than 6 but less than 12 months BEARRASNEAELR+ @A
Over 12 months +Z@EANE
Trade receivables are normally due on presentation of billing
or within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b)

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded

using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied

that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly

(see note 2(m)(i)).

No impairment losses were recognised on trade receivables
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Trade receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:

17

P Wi B R e L e P W R (7

(c)

AR AEL FE W BR R

I 48 B8 38 o K R AR AR (B 2 FE UL
RRZREBRDOMTIAT -

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Neither past due nor impaired e BR R (E 775 2,217

Less than 1 month past due BmE DR —{EA 1,159 949

1 to 3 months past due mE—=={EA 317 859
More than 3 but less than 6 months mAEER=EAELIR

past due 7~ E A 87 110
More than 6 but less than 12 months BRI E A E DR

past due +—@A 44 587

More than 12 months past due BERA T @A 16 92

1,623 2,597

2,398 4,814

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

(Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
trading record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is

necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

18 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the money
lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

17 FEWRRFR B B £t WOk (A&

(c)

R AEL FE Ui B R (4D

BB SORE 2 EUGR BT R B
RPRELEPHRE -

B 8 H 18 ORE 2 8 W B E T8
YEFPEH  REREPEAKESR
REFBEERE - REBELR - &
EERRBANZFERIELRE
BiH RARGEEKRKTLEERE
B MZFEKDRR A BBR
g o

18 BWERRFE

AEBNEREREMNEBEARRZEMN
BRARAREERHMERNBEEBME
o AEBENREEREERKER K
B8 AN B S B ARIE S IAREIR D
SERR BRREHERETHES -

management.
2017 2016
“E—tF —EREF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EREs AEHD @ ER#s  MEHH Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TAT TAT TAT
Secured loans by personal A AR Z IKIFE R
guarantees 44,500 1,596 46,096 66,000 2,303 68,303
Unsecured loans EIKIE & 52,448 329 52,777 104,320 1,692 106,012
96,948 1,925 98,873 170,320 3,995 174,315
Current portion included REBEEET2EN
under current assets mBNER S (96,948) (1,925)  (98,873) (165,320) (3,995)  (169,315)
Amounts due after FEMEBNEEET
1 year included under BEN—F%
non-current assets BB RIE - - - 5,000 = 5,000

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

18 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 10% to
42% (2016: 10% to 36%) per annum and repayable on maturity
date under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in

18 BUWERRAE (&)

EREFRFNERNFI0%9EL2% (=

=

=

NE10%E36%)FHE  WHASE

BEREBARBERAGHRGHRIANERE

writing by the Group. KIEE o
(a) Ageing analysis (a) ERERD#T
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due date: RO RBEARIAE R
2017 2016
“E—tF ZT-RF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EREHy  AEHD @it EREs  MEEH @it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FET FET FET FET
Neither past due nor 38 B Sl (E
impaired 96,948 1,886 98,834 152,220 3,995 156,215
Less than 1 month wE LR —EA
past due - 39 39 6,625 - 6,625
1 to 3 months past due #EEi—Z= =1{& A - - - 11,475 = 11,475
- 39 39 18,100 - 18,100
96,948 1,925 98,873 170,320 3,995 174,315

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference
to historical information about counterparty default rates.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

In respect of loans and interest receivables which have been
past due, the amounts mainly represent occasional delay in
repayment and they were fully settled subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. Accordingly, the management is of
the opinion that no impairment allowance on these individual
loans is necessary.

EBHSORENERER R EH
EEERZ2ERMI ST RO
ZREBRHERT G - RARZ B
EW|MRAK

HRBHNEREREMNE  EE
HIEZRBRACHER  WHERX
BEMRBBBE - Bt - EHE
RREFRLFERNERIELRE
R

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at

bank and on hand.

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted
to HK$100,000 (2016: HK$111,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

19

BeRhESSEBYRAMR
EREBER (F)

(b) TRBIAEEREBMEFHHNE
EEH(BRERSRIFREEE)HF
B-BRERDELANABERER
EREBIARAKRRERESEANEE
RARERERTOEARELD
AR RENAE -

Financial
assistance Interest-
from Finance bearing
government leases  borrowings Total
BUR B R BY MEHE M EAE R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TAET FET
(note 21) (note 23) (note 22)
(BizE21) GEYE) (PFifEE22)
At 1 January 2017 R-E—t&—HF—H 114 = 28,000 28,114
Changes from financing BETHHERELE !
cash flows:
Capital element of finance BENREHEREMN
lease rentals paid eI H - (772) - (772)
Interest element of finance ENRERERSH
lease rentals paid K BB - (172) - (172)
Repayment of financial BERTBUEE
assistance from government (114) - - (114)
(114) (944) - (1,058)
Other changes: Hit# 8 .
New finance leases FRmERE - 4,942 = 4,942
Finance charges on BMEME 2 REN
obligations under BEER
finance leases - 172 - 172
= 5,114 = 5,114
At 31 December 2017 R-EB—+HF
+=—HA=+—H - 4,170 28,000 32,170

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

20

21

22

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand.

20

FEAS BR AR % L A B A 3K

B M RREMENRERAER —FR
BERERRBATIRENRER -

2017 2016

—E—+tfF AN

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade payables 2 S ERMIE 825 16
Accrued charges and other payables Est BB K E A E I8 2,623 3,253
2,948 3,269

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM
GOVERNMENT

The Innovation and Technology Fund (“ITF”) of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region government has provided financial
assistance to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group to assist
in a specific product development. The funding was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable to ITF when revenue is generated from
the specific product. The amount repaid would be in stages and
calculated with reference to the revenue generated and received.
The balance as at 31 December 2016 has been fully repaid to ITF
during the year.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the interest-bearing borrowings represent
a loan of HK$28,000,000 (2016: HK$28,000,000) granted
by a finance company to a subsidiary. The loan was secured
by the Group’s land and buildings with a carrying amount of
HK$42,955,000 (2016: HK$47,079,000) and corporate guarantee
from the Company. The loan carries an interest rate of the Best
Lending Rate from Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited plus 3% per annum and is wholly repayable on or before 24
November 2018. The relevant loan agreement does not contain any
repayment on demand clauses.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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BRI RTHEAT RIS ((IF R
RHEES |) AR B 2 ANB 2 AR
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R-T—+FE+-_A=1+—08 WEHEXK
E—EMBARR—RNBARREZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under finance

leases payable as follows:

23

BMEMEE 2 RIE
R-F—+#+=A=+—R0  A£EE
BNz MEARE L FEWT

Present value

of the Total

minimum minimum

lease payments lease payments

BREHEE BEAE

RIEEE RIEHREE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Within 1 year —F A 982 1,148
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEREMFNR 1,030 1,148
After 2 years but within 5 years MFEBRERAFA 2,158 2,227
3,188 3,375

4,170 4,523

Total future interest expenses RIRAEFZ 85 (353)
Present value of lease obligations HEAERE 4,170

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

24 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX 24 EEFE KR ENHAR IE AL &R
BALANCES
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HFREMBMRRIFERZENHAHIE
of financial position represents: i
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBNEH BB
for the year 58 59
Provisional Profits Tax paid B SIS (59) =
(1) 59
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating — H& - E A NS 2 BE
to prior years R = 30
(1) 89
Represented by: BT EERT
Current tax recoverable AJ Uk =] BN AR TR (1) =
Current tax payable e BN EAR T8 = 89
(1) 89

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

e Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTEIR)
24 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX 24 E fE R R BDH OB & &R

BALANCES (CONTINUED) (#&)

(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (b) ERRZIELBELEE &F&
The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised REEVMBEMRRNBRERZIELER
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the HEE/ (BRI NERNEFHS
movements during the year are as follows: FanTR -

Depreciation Tax  Fair value
allowance  allowance adjustment
in excess of in excess of on
the related the related  intangible
Tax losses depreciation amortisation assets Total
Deferred tax assets/ EERBEE/ BBNENE BBAREEH ENEE
(liabilities) arising from: (BE)ELRB: BEFE WHEERE NHEREE ZATERER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT AT THT THET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—7~F—-HA—A - - = (2,707) (2,707)
Additions through business EREBAMRE
combination 4,454 (13) - (11,017) (6,576)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss £ A/ (1% ) B
from continuing operations £BmER 339 @) - 124 461
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss & A/ (%) 24 Ik
from discontinued operation REEBRER - - - 146 146
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR = - - 2,314 2,314
Exchange adjustments SNE R = - - 24 24
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—REF
1 January 2017 +-A=+—-B%
—T—+F—-H—H 4,793 (15) - (11,116) (6,338)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss # A /(1B )HELE
from continuing operations £BmER (3,597) 4 (497) 2,217 (1,873)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—-H 1,196 (11) (497) (8,899) (8,211)

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

24 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$82,556,000 (2016: HK$95,177,000).
Of which, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses to the extent of approximately
HK$7,250,000 (2016: HK$29,049,000). The Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$75,306,000
(2016: HK$66,128,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Of the total unrecognised tax losses,
HK$4,562,000 (2016: HK$3,472,000) will be expire within 5
years and the remaining tax losses of HK$70,744,000 (2016:
HK$62,656,000) have no expiry date under the current tax
legislation. Other temporary differences are not material.

25 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of a subsidiary in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the relevant
local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiary is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic salary of
its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 in respect of the retirement of its employees.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme which was adopted on 25 November 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the board of directors
of the Company may, at its discretion, grant share options to the
eligible participants including any employees, directors, suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion
of the board of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and
motivate their contributions to the Group.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of
“Eligible Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the
definition of “Invested Entity” be added to the New Share Option
Scheme (“Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company, the maximum number of shares available for
subscription under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme
or any other option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i)  The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time to time; and

(i)  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under Amendments to
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue at the date of the approval of Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme/at the date of passing the
relevant resolution in general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.

26 URAEEZRORZ

RIZE-—=FRANR  ARFARKRRE
FREBBABEHRILEBRETS(TE
BIRESE] DR-ZZZ2=+—A
“HRBARMA) ZEBRER - WIERAH
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must be
approved by independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the proposed grantee of
the options).

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration
for a grant of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the board of
directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board
of directors providing that the price shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The total number of share option that could be granted was limited
to 108,864,000 shares at par value of HK$0.04 each, representing
approximately 10% of the total issued shares of the Company on
the date of passing the resolution to refresh the New Share Option
Scheme limit at the annual general meeting on 4 May 2017.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme was granted or
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27 EXRKG#HE
(a) Share capital (a) B
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) EEREZEITRA
Number
of shares Amount
RBEE &8
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares gl
At 1 January 2016 of RZE—RF—H—H
HK$0.004 each TIRTEEO0.00478 7T 2 fX 15 10,000,000 40,000
Share consolidation (note (ii)) &1 & B (BT EE (i) (9,000,000) -
Increase in authorised share capital %5 Bx A< 3% A0 (B £ Giii))
(note (iii)) 2,000,000 80,000

At 31 December 2016, 1 January R-ZTE—RNFE+-A=+—

2017 and 31 December 2017 H - ZZ2—+tF—A—RHk
of HK$0.04 each —E—+tF+ZA=1+—H
HHREEC.04% T 2 I 3,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January 2016 of RNZT—RF—H—H
HK$0.004 each B EE0.004/8 T2 &7 5,040,000 20,160
Share consolidation (note (ii)) A& & BF (BT 3 Gi)) (4,536,000) =
Issue of shares (note (iv)) At 317 (B (iv)) 403,200 16,128
At 31 December 2016 and RZBE—RF+HA=+—H
1 January 2017 of HK$0.04 each rEZE—+F—F—BHBKAE
B0.04/ 8T 2 I’k 1% 907,200 36,288
Issue of shares (note (v)) R&tn 21T (MTaE(v)) 181,440 7,258
At 31 December 2017 of R—ZE—+F+=-_F=+—H
HK$0.04 each SREMEC.04E T2 K H 1,088,640 43,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

Share consolidation in 2016

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 19 February 2016, every 10
issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.004
each were consolidated into 1 new ordinary share of
HK$0.04 each (the “Share Consolidation”). Following
the Share Consolidation which has become effective
on 22 February 2016, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$40,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each, of which
504,000,000 shares were in issue and fully paid.

Increase in authorised share capital in 2016
Upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$40,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each to HK$120,000,000
divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04
each by creation of additional 2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.04 each.

Issue of shares in 2016

On 17 May 2016, the Company issued 252,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.24 per ordinary share on the basis of one new
share for every two existing shares held (the “Open
Offer”), resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$57,680,000. Details of the Open Offer are set out
in the Company'’s prospectus and announcement dated
22 April 2016 and 16 May 2016 respectively.

On 3 August 2016, the Company issued 151,200,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each pursuant to a placing
under general mandate at a price of HK$0.129
per ordinary share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$19,309,000.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

(v)

Issue of shares in 2017

On 10 January 2017, the Company issued 181,440,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each pursuant to a
placing under general mandate at a price of HK$0.16
per ordinary share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$28,270,000.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution
from shareholders in the form of interest-free loans.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of their non-interest bearing loans to
the Group at current market interest rate for similar
financial instruments. An early repayment of interest-
free loans represents a reduction in contribution from
shareholders and reduces capital reserve accordingly.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company
and the Group’s former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(2).
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(a) BAE(&|)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes financial
assistance from government, obligations under finance leases
and consideration payable for business combination), less
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$233,998,000 (2016: HK$222,862,000).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, interest receivables and
cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. Trade receivables are normally due on
presentation of billing or due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 27% (2016: 20%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the largest debtor.

For loans and interest receivables, the Group manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of the new and existing
borrowers before standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the borrower based on the borrower’s
financial position, past experience and other factors. For
loans principal exceeding a predetermined amount, the
Group holds collateral against these loans receivable and
interest receivables in the form of guarantee executed by the
guarantor. Individual risk limits are set based on the value of
collaterals provided by borrowers, if required, and internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the directors.
The credit quality classification of loans receivable and their
respective interest receivables using the Group’s credit rating
system is set out in the table below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

28 BIEREEREMIAD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(a) FERRE)

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Performing B# 98,834 156,215
Doubtful RER 39 18,100
Loss 18 - -
98,873 174,315
The Group considers the loans and respective interest MRS R S EBHDmEREA

receivables as doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or of
interest has been overdue and principal, accrued interest and/
or future interest may not be fully secured by the collaterals.
The Group considers the loans and respective interest
receivables as loss if the repayment of principal and/or of
interest has been overdue for more than 12 months and the
collection of principal and/or of interest in full is improbable.

The Group estimates and recognises impairment losses for
the loans and interest receivables considered as “doubtful”
and “loss”, taking into account of the fair values of collaterals
which are inadequate to cover the loans and interest
receivables. The amount of doubtful and loss of loans and
interest receivables were HK$39,000 (2016: HK$18,100,000)
as at 31 December 2017.

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping together
all its receivables with similar credit risk characteristics. The
impairment review is carried out on all those loans and
interest receivables based on the historical impairment rates.
Since the historical impairment rate is zero during the current
and prior year, the management therefore considers that the
collective impairment loss is HK$Nil (2016: HK$Nil) as at 31
December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
The amount of provision for impairment is monitored by the
management on a monthly basis.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers constituted
approximately 28% and 55% (2016: 21% and 52%) of
the Group’s loans receivable balance respectively as at 31
December 2017.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required.

Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed at financial
institutions that have sound credit ratings and the directors
consider that the credit risk in liquid funds is limited.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables are set out in
notes 17 and 18 respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEREEREMIAARN
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REVE SR (&)
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRAJNAKEZ RABRRE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HRERBE A TEINEERE - D
Group's financial liabilities, which is based on contractual EREIHARMRRSRE(BIERE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RETAREFE 2 FEFHIE - s
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on REE - RBEHEHHERKZ
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the BITHERAE) AR AREB AL E
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: %R A :
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2017 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
EAAREERE -SRI SR—F
—E2—tH+=B=+-H REE ReRELE FERER ALIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FTExT FTEx THERT
Trade and other payables FEFTBR IR R L M R 3K 2,948 2,948 2,948 =
Obligations under finance leases gi& fH & & 4,170 4,523 1,148 3,375
Interest-bearing borrowings i Bf&3X 28,000 30,053 30,053 =
Consideration payable for ERAHENRE
business combination 71,651 75,900 75,900 -
106,769 113,424 110,049 3,375
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 EABREEREMIARN

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E(1E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESEM(E)
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2016 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BATAARMER —FREH SR—F
—E-RF+=-A=1+-8 FEE RenEes HRER  EIREEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FAET FAT
Trade and other payables JE 5 AR R e EL At FE AT 3R 3,268 3,268 3,268 =
Financial assistance from BURT 57 R B
government 114 114 114 =
Interest-bearing borrowings  Fif 8 f&5% 28,000 32,480 2,427 30,053
Consideration payable for ERAEMNRE
business combination 106,623 121,000 - 121,000
138,005 156,862 5,809 151,053
(c) Interest rate risk () FI=mEp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from loans AEBZMERBFERBERE
receivable, consideration payable for business combination K EBEHEMRE RN EE
and interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at fixed Ko EBREBMERSAEBES
rate and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest MERZATFENERREEREERE
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The FEER  BEESZEAEEZF
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is HIPEHINWT ©

set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 KARBREERSBMIAAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () AZER(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEHAE

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s interest-earning loans and interest-bearing
borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

FRIMNBE AR RAEA
CLREN G UEY - ed ]
EEA -

2017 2016
“E—tF —ERF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate % HK$'000 rate % HK$'000
BERFIE% THET ERFE% FAT
Net fixed rate deposits EEENFH
Loans receivable W E R 10.0% - 42.0% 96,948 10.0% - 36.0% 170,320
Obligations under finance leases &4 7 & # & N/A
3.5% -4.8% (4,170) NEfA -
Consideration payable for EBAHEMNRE
business combination 7.3% (69,000) 7.2% (110,000)
23,778 60,320
Variable rate borrowings  ZE{EX
Interest-bearing borrowings [ B1EFK 8.0% (28,000) 8.0% (28,000)
Net exposure EEFE (4,222) 32,320

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$117,000 (2016: HK$117,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 50 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of the next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2016.

(d) Currency risk
The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management

considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign

currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses

are denominated in the functional currency of the operations

to which they relate. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

28 BIEREEREMIAD

FE(E)

(c)

(d)

A= m b ()

(i)

HELE DT
R-ZT—+E+=-_f=+—
A BERREMAH B
RETEBR TN, 5
SOfE 2L+ Bt m, w L
REBERBIBEBERRTEE
#9117,0008 L (=T —"45F :
117,000/87C) °

LA SURE AT R R F R
FENARE BFEREEmME
T WEANRZBGEZ &R
T HEZF @A - 550
EE2E RS RIE AT R ER
HET—EAFERSHRHHE
AEMETEH 2T - =%
—ANEFETZHNMRABARE

o

BE¥ER

AEBEBAHLHEEERAFBIN
BLIRARKEIE - ERERRA

SEYEMBEANERR B

KE W -
9 R AR 2 0 B S BHE
RSB B B3 B SME ERBOR © A

WA BERMAX

M EREEFIIERRRENE
FERHEZRE HFEARINERR

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017

177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 KARBREERSBMIAAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E(1E)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) €@ T AERI
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets SMEE
Contingent consideration assets for HXBEHKAREBEE
business combination - 17,971
Loan and receivables (including cash ERNEWFIE(BIERS R
and cash equivalents) B&EEY) 148,411 199,080
Prepayment option embedded in BEITERRLERANERN
promissory note issued AR TR 116 837
148,527 217,888
Financial liabilities EA =N
Financial liabilities measured at Eice: (37 DN el §= R
amortised cost 35,118 31,383
Consideration payable for business HEEEHEANRE -
combination, measured at fair value RAFEFE 71,651 106,623
106,769 138,006

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Contingent consideration assets for business
combination, prepayment option embedded in
promissory note issued and consideration payable for
business combination include contingent consideration
are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period on a recurring basis. The fair value
measurements of these financial assets and liabilities
are categorised as Level 3, whose fair value is measured
using significant unobservable inputs, as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The Group's finance department performs valuations
for the Level 3 financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the management and
the audit committee. A valuation report with analysis of
changes in fair value measurement is prepared by the
finance department with external valuation specialists
appointed by the Group at each annual reporting date,
and is reviewed and approved by the management.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with the
management and the audit committee is held once a
year.

28 BIEREEREMIAD

FE(E)

() AFEHE

(i)

BRFEFEZEHEE
KEE

EBAHNAAREEE -
BITARARETHHOREE
REREBEHENRERRE
HARME - DREHEHRR
BREENERRE RN FER
B - ZERATEAENSR
BENBEROBRE=A
HRAFEEBERTABRE
ABUBFE(ERZ R EBMB
HELRE135 - AT EF

B)-

AEEZHBEHPIRE=RE
BT EEITME - MR
ERENEVZECHEER
& MBAFIREAREREN
SNEPAEERNEFEEER
PRAFA A TEAEZES D
WHBERS  YHERER
BN - BEEERERE
BEemtEAERAERNTR
BEET R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 IBEKBREEREMIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) AFETE(E)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BRNFEITEZEHEMEE
value (Continued) REEHE)
The following table provides information about Level 3 TREHBEBEE=R A TEET
fair value measurements: BZER
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input
HELR BATUBE@ANEE

Financial assets

CREE
Unlisted available-for-sale Recoverable amount N/A
equity instruments EIEdEs: TEA
AETFERELA
Contingent consideration assets Binomial Lattice model Discounted cash flows used to derive
for business combination ZIARBREE the estimated fair value of FS Group
XBafsAREEE and the probability of the Put Option
(as defined in note 29(a)) being
exercised
ARt EFSEB AT AFENKRRER
DREBARITEAEE(ER R
29(a)) B A] BE1E
Prepayment option embedded in Binomial Lattice model N/A
promissory note issued ZIEAEREER TiEA
BTN ERAT AR
TR R TR
Financial liabilities
cRAaE
Consideration payable for Discounted cash flow Discount rate and the probability-
business combination AIRIBERE adjusted revenue and profit of FS
XBEHREEE Group (2016: FS Group) used to

derive the discounted cash flow

ARETEMRBEERE AR KA
T2 FS = B )W s K s F AT BB 1 SR 2
(20164 : FSEE[E)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

The fair value of contingent consideration assets for
business combination is determined using binomial
lattice model and the significant unobservable input
used in the fair value measurement is the discounted
cash flows used to derive the estimated fair value of
FS Group and the probability of the Put Option being
exercised. The fair value measurement is negatively
related to the discounted cash flows, i.e. an increase
in discounted cash flows would result in a decrease in
the fair value measurement, and vice versa. Conversely,
the fair value measurement is positively related to the
discounted cash flows, i.e. an increase in probability
of the Put Option being exercised would result in an
increase in the fair value measurement, and vice versa.

The fair value of prepayment option embedded in the
promissory note issued is determined using binomial
lattice model. The fair value is insignificant to the
consolidated statement of financial position and any
changes to the unobservable input would not result in
significant changes in the fair value measurement.

The fair value of consideration payable for business
combination is determined using discounted cash flow
method to capture the present value of the expected
future cash outflows of the Group. The fair value
measurement is negatively related to the discount
rate used, i.e. an increase in discounted rate used in
isolation would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement, and vice versa. Conversely, the fair value
measurement is positively related to the probability-
adjusted revenue and profit of FS Group (2016: FS
Group), i.e. an increase in probability-adjusted revenue
and profit in isolation would result in an increase in the
fair value measurement, and vice versa.

28 BIEREEREMIAD

FE(E)

(f) AFEFAEGR)

(i)

R FETEZEHBEE
RREE)

EBEHMIAREEENR
FETRA AR B
€ ATERETHAEANE
ATABRBARERAR
EFSEBEE A TENER
RE B RITIEG SR 8
i AT EBEBRASR
BRAME DMRRSRE
A ERATETERD
R2ZIH - BR - DT ER
BRUBRSREREMRMN -
BDTT {55 5t £5 HE 0 7] Bl 14 380
BHATEBHEM - K2

BERITALE BN SRR
FHEH RN FETER Z AR
EAETE - A FEHGREY
Bk M =B IEX - WA
ABRG ABBENEANERE
TEEYRAFEAEBHREKR

EBAENRENQTFED
FREIRIBEREEAETE - K
ATEAEEBEHRARES R
MWIRE - AFEEEAFER
REIRE BB A - BNEBEAT
FRAMEIRRIEMGER A
FEFERD  RZIK -
Bk AFEFEESEER
(2016 : FSEEE) My AT B ME A 2
ek Mom A A& 1EARREE - BNEE
A e ME S B MR S R v I A 388 00
HERAFEGEEN  R2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28

BRBREERESBMIARN

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) AFEFE(E)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of these

() HERFEIAEZEHAE
LREE (&)
FR - REZRATENER

Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: BREBINT :
2017
—E—tF
Contingent Prepayment
consideration option Consideration
assets for embedded in payable for
business promissory business
combination note issued combination
2817
XBE6 AAZRBKE EBEB
RAREEE H1R Al B TR RE ENRE
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
THET THET TR
At 1 January n—H—H 17,971 837 (106,623)
Settlement wHE - - 41,368
Changes in fair value R PHER
recognised in profit or loss AT {EZH) (17,971) (721) (6,396)
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—8H - 116 (71,651)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 EABREEREMIARN

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E(1E)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) AFETE(E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () RN FEAEZTHEE
value (Continued) REEHE)
2016
—E—RF
Contingent Prepayment
consideration option Consideration
assets for embedded in payable for
business promissory business
combination note issued combination
B2
ENA0 ANEBRME Exa st
FARBEE B AiT 42 FRHE ERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FHT
At 1 January R—A—H - - (28,247)
Additions NE 19,364 944 (105,744)
Settlement by disposal of BBHEHE AT
subsidiaries (note 31) EE(MIsE31) - - 30,000
Changes in fair value R P R
recognised in profit or loss  AY{E%E (1,393) (107) (2,632)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 17,971 837 (106,623)
(i) Financial assets/liabilities carried at other than (i) R FELKIMEESEZ
fair value CHEEBIE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial N BRI S A DIE
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not ZEemTAMNEEEEENR
materially different from their fair values as at 31 T—+FRZT-RF+=A
December 2017 and 2016. T+ —HMAFELEERE
&=

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) Acquisition of FS Group

On 25 October 2016, the Group, through Hyper Venture
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary (the “FS Purchaser”),
acquired 60% equity interest in FS Group from independent
third parties (the “FS Vendors”) at a nominal consideration
of HK$150,000,000 (the “FS Consideration”) (the “FS
Acquisition”).

Pursuant to the agreement for sale and purchase dated 8
August 2016 entered into between the FS Purchaser, the FS
Vendors and the Company (as the “FS Guarantor”) in relation
to the FS Acquisition (the “FS Acquisition Agreement”), the
FS Consideration shall be paid by the FS Purchaser to the FS
Vendors (or its nominee(s)) as to: (i) HK$40,000,000 in cash
as refundable deposit to be paid within one-month after the
date of the FS Acquisition Agreement; (ii) HK$110,000,000
by the issuance of a promissory note at 5% per annum
(the “Promissory Note”). The principal and accrued interest
thereon are wholly repayable on the date immediate
following 2 years after the date of issue of the Promissory
Note to the FS Vendors (or their nominees) upon the
completion of the FS Acquisition (i.e. 25 October 2016) (the
“Completion”). Pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement,
the principal may be prepaid in full or in part by the FS
Purchaser at any time together with interest accrued thereon
without penalty by giving no less than 7 business days prior
notice in writing to the holders of the Promissory Note (the
“Prepayment Option”).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 29 ¥EBE6t(E)

(a) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued) (a) WEBFSEE(E)

Pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement, the FS Vendors
guarantee to the FS Purchaser that the audited consolidated
net profit after taxation of FS Group for the twelve full
months immediately following the Completion (“2017 FS
Profit”) shall not be less than HK$14,200,000 (the “FS
Profit Guarantee”). The FS Purchaser shall have the rights
to sell the 60% equity interest in First Surplus (the “Sale
Shares”) to the FS Vendors at the price equivalent to the FS
Consideration, whereupon the FS Vendors shall have the
obligation to purchase the Sale Shares at such price in the
event that FS Group fails to meet the FS Profit Guarantee (the
"Put Option”) within a period of 6 months after the date of
approval of the audited consolidated financial statements of
FS Group (the “Exercisable Period”).

The FS Consideration comprises: (a) cash; (b) the Promissory
Note with an embedded Prepayment Option; and (c) the
Put Option. The fair value of the FS Consideration at the
Completion is as follows:

RIBFSUE I - FSEAMFSE R
REBEFSEBRERETRE T ZET
BAZREZH BEA & FE
(I ZZE—LFFSEFM D BTALR
14,200,000/ 7T ([ FS)m AR E 1) ©
WMFSEERENRFSEBKEBZER
B RS SRREHL M B ERAE /N B B AR
([ AIATEHARE ) s ARSI AR & -
FSER B AREMFSE B ARSERFS
RIBE HEFirst SurplusZ60% %
E(EERND])  MSEABER
FUZEERBELEERN (A
B -

FSRERRE : (B2 (b)BBITH
WIRAIERE AN BT R()
Bk FSRENTEXB 2 AFES
FEAT

Contractual
amount Fair value
ERHEE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Consideration settled by cash on RZEBE—RNENLAEHE
7 September 2016 ReEFFoRE 40,000 40,000
Consideration payable by Promissory Note A -Z— &+ A -+HH
issued on 25 October 2016 (note (i) BITERREZERESI N2 KRE
(BEEG)) 110,000 105,744
Prepayment Option embedded in the BT AR RTE 2
Promissory Note issued (note (i)) O IR (MTEEG)) - (944)
Contingent consideration assets FAREEE—
- Put Option (note (ii)) EE R (M EE)) - (19,364)
150,000 125,436

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(if)

The fair value of the consideration payable by the Promissory
Note is measured as the fair value of the Promissory Note as if the
Promissory Note was issued without the Prepayment Option.

The fair value of the Promissory Note as if the Promissory Note
was issued without the Prepayment Option is measured by
discounting the total contractual undiscounted cash outflows
of HK$121,000,000, being the aggregate of the principal
of HK$110,000,000 and the accrued interest thereon of
HK$11,000,000, at the discount rate of 6.97% as determined by
the directors of the Company with reference to valuation carried
out by an independent valuer (the “Valuer”), as if it is to be paid
on 25 October 2018, being 2 years after the date of issue of the
Promissory Note. The discount rate of 6.97% comprises the risk-
free rate of 0.46%, a credit spread of 4.56% and a liquidity spread
of 1.95%.

The fair value of the Prepayment Option as at 25 October 2016
is determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to valuation carried out by the Valuer and is measured based on
Binomial Lattice model. The Prepayment Option embedded in
the Promissory Note issued and the consideration payable by the
Promissory Note form part of the Consideration, and are required
to be measured at fair value in accordance with HKFRS 3 (see
accounting policy set out in note 2(f)).

The fair value of the Put Option is determined by the directors
of the Company with reference to valuation carried out by the
Valuer, and is calculated by multiplying the value of the Put Option
of approximately HK$48,410,000 and the probability of the Put
Option being exercised of 40%.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued)
Value of the Put Option
The value of the Put Option as at 25 October 2016 of
HK$48,410,000 is measured based on Binomial Lattice
model, with the principal assumptions as follows:

Market price HK$144,800,000 (note (i)
Exercise price HK$150,000,000 (note (ii))
Expected volatility 67% (note (iii))

Option life 23 months from 25 October 2016

to 25 September 2018

Vesting period 6 months from 25 March 2018
to 25 September 2018 (note (iv))

Expected dividend Nil
Risk-free interest rate 0.46% (note (v))

Note:

(i) The market price represents 60% of the estimated fair value of FS
Group as at 25 October 2016, being HK$241,333,000.

(ii) The exercise price represents the price that the FS Purchaser could
sell the 60% equity interest in First Surplus to the FS Vendors in the
event that FS Group fails to meet the FS Profit Guarantee.

(iii) The expected volatility of the market price of FS Group is
determined by reference to the average volatility in stock prices, as
obtained from Bloomberg, of several comparable companies.

(iv) The audited consolidated financial statements of FS Group are
assumed to be available in 5 months after the end of the period
of the FS Profit Guarantee (i.e. 24 October 2017). As such, the
Exercisable Period will be from 25 March 2018 to 25 September
2018.

(v) The risk-free rate is calculated by averaging the 1-year and 2-years
Hong Kong Sovereign Bond yield as at 25 October 2016, as
obtained from Bloomberg.

29 RHAEH(E)
(a) UrHEFSEEE (M)

EEHEE
R-ZZE—XR"F+A-+HAB B
THEAMEAE N E A EEE
/448,410,000 7T © = ERRE
BENR

M58 144,800,000 7c.(HIzE())

18 150,000,000 7t (P £ (i)

BRI 67% (F15(iii))

HERTH ZE-AETAZTRAZE
- \FNA-THAE
—t+=fA

BB “Z-N\¥=A-thHZE
“E-\EAAZtTER#E
NEEIGEN)

SRS z

BREMBHE 0.46% (FizE(v))

Wi

i) THEEBERFSEER-FT—XRF+A
T RHZHEATFEE% - B
241,333,000/ T °

(i) IEEARFSEFEFSEEREEK
FSim FIR BB R T - AJLAMFSE
J5 & EFirst Surplus 2 60% A& &)
B1% -

iy FSEEMSEERRBOINZET
FRETALRARZ FHRER
BT o

(iv) FSEEBLEREAMBEHREBRER
RFSHEFMRFEHREAMBA (1=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued)

Probability of the Put Option being exercised

The forecasted net profit after taxation of FS Group in the
cash flow forecast prepared by the directors of the Company
is assumed to be the 2017 FS Profit, which exceeds the FS
Profit Guarantee. The directors of the Company determine
that the probability that FS Group would fail to meet the FS
Profit Guarantee is 40%. Should FS Group fail to meet the
FS Profit Guarantee, it is further assumed that the Purchaser
must exercise the Put Option during the Exercisable Period
of the Put Option. The Put Option is an asset resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Such contingent
consideration asset forms part of the Consideration, and are
required to be measured at fair value in accordance with

HKFRS 3 (see accounting policy set out in note 2(f)).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTEIR)
29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 29 EKSGF(E)
(a) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued) (a) WEBFSEE(E)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired RWEBBHEREZEHAINEE R
and goodwill arose as at the date of the acquisition are as BEATEUKFESSNEENT
follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 147
Intangible assets B AE 66,768
Deferred tax assets B IEE & 4,454
Trade and other receivables JFEE A2 B 50 e L W R 724
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 764
Deferred income EFEWA (265)
Deferred tax liabilities RLEBIEAE (11,030)
Other payables and accruals HibEI SRR ER B (2,543)
Net identifiable assets acquired BB BRI FEE 59,019
Non-controlling interests* SRR i # (23,016)
Net identifiable assets attributable to owners RNTHEA AEG T A
of the Company FEE 36,003
Goodwill arising on business combination EREHELEC TSR 89,433
Total consideration wRE 125,436
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEZRERTFE
Consideration paid in cash EfRReRE 40,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired YIRS RIS FEY (764)
39,236
E The non-controlling interests are measured at the non-controlling # IR R DIREIERERHHE
interests’ proportionate share of fair value of the identifiable net WHEHE AR AT #BFEERTE

assets of the acquired subsidiaries. RILLBIEHE -

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of Stars Ventures Limited

On 13 April 2017, the Group, through Profile Venture
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary (the “SV Purchaser”),
acquired 100% equity interest in Stars Ventures Limited and
its subsidiaries and associates (together, “SV Group”) from
an independent third party (the “SV Vendor”) at a nominal
consideration of HK$32,400,000 (the “SV Consideration”)
(the “SV Acquisition™).

Pursuant to the agreement for sale and purchase dated 30
March 2017 entered into between the SV Purchaser and
the SV Vendor in relation to the SV Acquisition (the “SV
Acquisition Agreement”), the SV Consideration shall be
paid by the SV Purchaser upon completion of acquisition
as to: (i) by way of assignment and setoff against a sum of
approximately HK$32,326,000, being the aggregate balance
of an outstanding principal amount of the loan receivable of
HK$30,000,000 and accrued interest of HK$2,326,000 owed
by Stars Ventures Limited to the Group; and (ii) approximately
HK$74,000 in cash. Pursuant to the SV Acquisition
Agreement, the SV Vendor guaranteed to the SV Purchaser
that the accumulated audited consolidated profit before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA")
of SV Group for the year ending 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 shall be no less than EUR115,000 (the “SV
Profit Guarantee”).

If the actual accumulated audited EBITDA (“Actual EBITDA")
of SV Group for the year ending 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 is less than the SV Profit Guarantee, the SV
Vendor shall compensate the SV Purchaser with an amount
equalled to the product of multiplying HK$32,400,000 by
the percentage of shortfall over the SV Profit Guarantee in
cash within 7 business days after determination of the Actual
EBITDA.

Based on the assessment of the director of the Company, the
possibility of shortfall of the SV Profit Guarantee is remote,
and consequently the fair value of contingent consideration
asset is HK$Nil.
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29 XBEHH(E)

(b)

Ui B§Stars Ventures Limited
RZE—+FWNA+=H "' ~5E
% 48 2 & M B A &) Profile Venture
Limited ([SVE R ]) » LEZHR
532,400,000/ 7T ([ SV E 1) #
B E=F([SVEF ) WEEStars
Ventures Limited X E i@ A7) R H
B N R (T8 SVERE ]) (AR TSV
Wk ) o

BRIBESVEARSVEFR =T —+
F=ZA=+HILEBASVEERN
BEEH#(sVIkEHZ]) - SVE
TR IR TR () AR KK
55 3 X & 58 4932,326,000/5
T EREFRNREELASBE
30,000,000 & Jt K& Stars Ventures
Limited FE 1< T 2 5 B /9 FE 51 71 B2
2,326,000 7T K (ii)#174,0007%
TLIRE ZASVRIE - RIBESVIREE R
HFOSVEAFMSVERRE EHE
—EtFFT-A=t—RAR=%F
—N\F+_A=+—HLFE sV
SEMBRFE - BB - TEREHE
([EBITDA D) AT M) RFHE B IZAR & 5
MR H 115,000 0 7T ([ SVIR 75 5%
) e

WBE—_E—+tF+=-_A=+—H
F—_E-NE+-_A=+—HI
FE SVEENBERZRFALEZ
EBITDA ([ EFBREBITDA |) D RASVIR
B SVERERESVEAFZS
%8 532,400,000 7 JT 3€ JA SV R &
mMEBrzE L BEARETE
REBITDAR CREXHANB &L
e

RBEARBEFZFE - HBESVR
& N Z R AT e O E R
bt KARBEENRIFERTE
JC ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of Stars Ventures Limited

(c)

(Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
and goodwill arose as at the date of the acquisition are as

follows:

29 XBEHH(E)

(b) UWB&Stars Ventures Limited

(%&)

BEREBZABNEERBENAF
BRNUIERESZNEENT

HK$'000
FAT
Interests in associates NNl £ 32,464
Other payables and accruals Hi IR R E (64)
Net identifiable assets attributable to owners RNABVHEB ANERIH#AFEE
of the Company 32,400
Goodwill arising on business combination EBEHEEZHE =
Total consideration BRE 32,400
Satisfied by: AR AT
Cash R& 74
Assignment of amount due to the Group RN RSB A 32,326
32,400
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: IRBBEE A 2 IR R
Consideration paid in cash ERBReRE 74
The goodwill is attributable to the synergies of the acquired (c) BmEDEHAEERKEE @ I

businesses expected to arise after the Group’s acquisitions.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is expected to

be deductible for tax purposes.

WAIHER ©

BRBORFBREE - ZBF%
WREFES PR - REARY
TR TR A E R R -

B RRBELEZEHER TSR

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Acquisition-related costs of HK$752,000 (2016

(e)

HK$2,307,000) have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised
as "Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

No revenue was attributable to the additional businesses
generated by SV Group during the year ended 31 December
2017. Loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 includes
profit of HK$274,000 contributed by SV Group.

Had the SV Acquisition been taken place on 1 January 2017,
the directors of the Company estimate that the consolidated
revenue and the consolidated loss from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
HK$64,464,000 and HK$45,489,000 respectively. This pro-
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and result of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2017.

Included in the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
are approximately HK$111,000, attributable to the additional
business generated by FS Group. Loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 includes loss of HK$1,944,000 contributed
by FS Group.

Had the FS Acquisition been taken place on 1 January 2016,
the directors of the Company estimate that the consolidated
revenue and the consolidated loss from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would have been
HK$34,909,000 and HK$44,664,000 respectively. This pro-
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and result of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
Acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016.
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29 XBEHH(E)

(d)

(e)

I B8 MR BA R AR 752,000 T (= &
— 7% 12,307,000/ 70) B B EE
RENKR  TEEGEBERER
BITBAX] -

HE-_T—+tF+-A=+—H1t
FE - WERSENSVEEREEZ
BINEH - BHE-_T—+F+_-A
= t+t—AIEMFEEBBERESVEE
EEREFI274,0008 7T -

WM ESVERR T —tF—A
—HEET ARREEHEFEE
—E—+F+-A=+—HLFE
REFELEEBHNGRE WG RER
A BB D 5l 564,464,000 7% T &
45,489,000 B TC - ZEHEE R
EHL2E  WARRMEER=-Z
—tF—A—HREK  ~EEBE
BRI E R EEE -

Hz—Z2—X"&F+=-A=+—H
IEFEMWE AL 111,000 7T -
HIRRFSEBEL ZBEINET - &
EZFT—ARF+ZRA=+—H1
NEEBEREFSEBELENEIR
1,944,000/ 7T ©

W EFSEBER T — X F—A—
HEHET  ARRESGHAEHZS
E-XRNE+-A=+—BHLEE
REFELCEEBNEE NSRS
A BB D B 534,909,000 7T &
44,664,000 870 - ZEHEZE R
EH2E  WARRHEER=Z
—RNFE—A—HEK AEEET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

30 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 30 BRWE BB LT WE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 27 May 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Viva Star International Limited (“Viva Star”). Viva Star is principally
engaged in property investment and its major asset is an office
property in Hong Kong classified as an investment property at entity
level which was leased out to another subsidiary of the Group.

In the opinion of the director, the acquisition is in substance an
acquisition of the leasehold property, instead of an acquisition
of business and therefore is excluded from the scope of HKFRS
3 “Business Combinations”. Therefore, the acquisition was not
disclosed as a business combination in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 3.

=3

R-ZZE—RNFRA-T++H KEBUK
B Viva Star International Limited ([Viva
Star|) & EBHALHKE - Viva StarE B EYE
NE  WHEFEZEERTRBNNRAE
Y HHEAEEEANKREME I
EHETFAERNS —HERBAF -

EERR WEEGDWEHAEDE M
FFWBETY A Y T EBEMBREE
RIZE35SE [ B A0 JBEN - Bt - &K
B EBRBEFAMBRELEANEIRNE
KTABRBR/EBEG -

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this transaction RNRZ5HEISHEE LF&AE 2 8B
are as follows: T
HK$'000
FHT
Leasehold property WEYE 49,484
Interest-bearing borrowings Bt EfE R (22,000)
Amount due to a shareholder FEAT IR 3R I8 (22,152)
Other payables HMEMR (812)
4,520
Assignment of amount due to a shareholder EEE N IR RIE 22,152
Total consideration satisfied by cash HeX e rRE 26,672
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: UGB BE A 2 38 & it F 58
Cash consideration paid BENEERE 26,672

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of Sky Castle Investment Holdings

Limited and its subsidiary

On 1 February 2016, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in Sky Castle Investment Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary, Sky Castle Holdings (HK) Limited (together, “SC
Group”) for a cash consideration of HK$310,000.

Disposal of NH Group

On 30 June 2016, the Company disposed of the entire
equity interest in NH Group to an independent third
party for a nominal consideration of HK$90,000,000. NH
Group is principally engaged in the custom-made software
development services including urban grid management
system, internet marking of online P2P lending system and
other projects and its business is classified as “software
platform” segment.

Disposal of KanHan Educational Services
Limited

On 19 December 2016, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interest in KanHan Educational Services Limited
("KHE") to a company which is wholly-owned by Mo Wai
Ming, Lawrence, a former director of the Company, for
a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000. KHE is principally
engaged in the provision of website development, education
and communications software platform which focuses
on the development of syllabus and contents for Chinese
Language and learning in primary and secondary schools and
enterprises. Its business is classified as “software platform”
segment.
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HEMEAF

(a)

(b)

(c)

i & Sky Castle Investment
Holdings Limited & £} & 2 &
RZZE-—RF_A—HB  A&£EH
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Limited } = Fft B A & Sky Castle
Holdings (HK) Limited ( #t #§ [ SC
SEDZzE2BKRE  BeREAR
310,000 7T ©

HEAREZKE

RZZFE—XFNA=1+H8  AQA
LA 45 3% {2 90,000,000 JT [A1 98 32
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REEBETEXSRH TS RMGFH
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HEREZHBERBARLE

R-ZB—XE+-A+hB K&
B AR £ K (&5,000,0007 7T /A —fE
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HEFTENFRHEQUAE  #HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31 HEMBAR(ER)

(d) The assets and liabilities disposed at completion date (d) R BHLEnEERBEAE
comprise:
SC Group NH Group KHE Total
SCEME REEH BEHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET R FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment W - R R&E 310 26 85 421
Properties under development BRPYE - 2,652 - 2,652
Intangible assets EBRAE - 8,698 - 8,698
Goodwill (RS - 67,972 - 67,972
Trade and other receivables JRE LT B 2 e EL i PR U R - 3,727 4,256 7,983
Cash and cash equivalents RekR2EEY - 9,574 1,010 10,584
Current tax recoverable BIER AT UL Bl H 18 - - 106 106
Other payables oAt FEITER - (778) (25) (803)
Deferred income BEEWA - - (832) (832)
Current tax payable BIEARE (T H I8 = (1,143) = (1,143)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE - (2,169) (145) (2,314)
Net assets EEFE 310 88,559 4,455 93,324
Non-controlling interests JEFEARRE RS - (3,108) - (3,108)
Net assets disposed of HENEETHE 310 85,451 4,455 90,216

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31 HEMBAR(ER)

(e) (Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries (e) HEKBLAR(EE) W
SC Group NH Group KHE Total
SCEE REER BEHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT FHET
Consideration RE
- Consideration settled in cash —URERFLEEY
and cash equivalents T ZRE 310 58,745 5,000 64,055
- Assignment of amount from the —m@AEEAAL
Group to NH Group SEEE . EHE = 1,255 = 1,255
- Set-off of remaining —EEAB U IE ETHR
consideration payable under TEARE
the NH Acquisition - 30,000 - 30,000
- Disposal-related costs —HERBRAR - (1,006) - (1,006)
310 88,994 5,000 94,304
Net assets disposed of HEEEFHE (310) (85,451) (4,455) (90,216)
Cumulative exchange loss HEMBARIE
reclassified from equity to NESEFHIEE
profit or loss upon disposal of B REtIMEEE
subsidiaries = (7,410) = (7,410)
(Loss)/gain on disposal HE(ER),/WE - (3,867) 545 (3,322)
The loss on disposal from NH Group is included in the (loss)/ HERBZEEBBERERIEEE
profit for the year from discontinued operation (see note 7). ERFEE(BR), SN2 (B
7) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31 HEMBAR(ER)

(f) Net cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries f) HEHBARREREREE
SC Group NH Group KHE Total
SCEE REEE BEHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FHET FAET FAT
Consideration settled in cash MR RRESED
and cash equivalents B ZRE 310 58,745 5,000 64,055
Disposal-related costs HE BB R - (1,006) - (1,006)
Cash and cash equivalents HEME S K
disposed of ReEEY = (9,574) (1,010) (10,584)
Net cash inflow RERNFR 310 48,165 3,990 52,465
32 COMMITMENTS 32 EiE
As at 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments RZE—+F+ZA=+—8 ' RETA
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Bl & HE BN 2 R R &RHE L I A
BT
2017 2016
—Z=—+tfF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Within 1 year —F R 3,787 4,627
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 439 3,124
4,226 7,751
The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises held under REBEABBEEHEERBEZHA
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of 1 month to EYEZEBA  BHEBEZYS
2 years (2016: 3 years), with an option to renew the leases when HRA—EAZEMF(ZZT—RF
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent =F) AIERSHERMARRA
rentals. BEHE - SIEEEREIAEE -

REFPREEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 ERFEELSIRSRER
AND BALANCES
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEBAEEHMN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBETEEE A BHMNERIEMNES
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as FrifEe 2 B AR B EERIB KW
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees HIFMBEBE ENETEaEFMES
as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: ZHIE - FBWT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term employee benefits HHEEERF 4,134 4,382
Post-employment benefits 92 93
4,226 4,475
(b) Except as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to these (b) #E—ZT—tHER-_T—REFE+=
consolidated financial statements, the Group has not entered A=+—HIEFE ' BREETBR
into any material related party transactions during the years KMEMEEEN  ANEBEWEE
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. TRNEREERRS °
(c) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company's (c) mpEHBAEZESNAR TR
statement of financial position in note 17 and 36(a). AR R TE17 % 36(a)HFE -
34 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 34 MEMBIFARSE
REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRRZSHeMHREAML Y 2HES
statements, the Group does not have other significant events after Oh - AEEA BN BEREREHMEX
£I5 -

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

35 SUBSIDIARIES 35 HEAT

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TRERBIEXEATERE - BEX
BENMBARZFHE - RREEHIN
FARDOERIEE AR -

Country of Particulars of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation issued and ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation  paid up capital interest 2017 interest 2016 Principal activity
BlAS BETR EREFEERNE EREEERZLL
NRER SEfEER BRRAE (Z8—1H) (Z2-1F) TEXK
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B B B R
Aurum Pacific Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative services
BHERARAT BE 1R (1T RETHER RS
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and provision of
(HK$7,200,000) software platform
EENRBRAR B 363,636/ 17 REBRRRHEMATR
(7,200,003 )
KanHan Technologies China Limited PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of software platform
(notes 1 and 2)
BMEEMBARRA(HE152) el 1,000,000% 7T REEMTA
Aurum Pacific Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money lending business
BRBAERAT BE 1RAE LR RUHEEH
(171
First Surplus (note 3) BVI 50,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
of US1 each
First Surplus (fitz¥3) EBRUES 50,0008 & 13 REER
BR1ET
Mooff Games Limited (notes 3and 4) ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 44% - 44%  Development and provision of
(HK$10,000) mobile data solutions and related
services
Mooff Games Limited(F{5E34) B 10,0008B& (3 RERREBDIBRATRR
(10,000 7T) il b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Country of

Particulars of

35 MEAR(E)

Proportion of

Proportion of

incorporation issued and ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation  paid up capital interest 2017 interest 2016 Principal activity
ERELR BRIk EBREAEEGHA EBREFEEZLY
NAEH EEfRER BRRAFE (Z8-1H) (ZB-1%§) TERH
Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
HE 553 B i
Side Quest Limited (note 3) Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares - 51% - 51%  Development and provision of
(HK$4,510,001) mobile data solutions and related
services
Side Quest Limited (Fif33) B 3,020,0008% 8 RERREBDAERANIER
(4,510,00137T) il b
Smart City Technology Limited (note 3) ~ Hong Kong 12,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
(HK$1,010,000)
BEATNRARRT(MH3) £ 12,000 15 R TR
(1,010,000%7T)
Top Banana Limited (note 3) Hong Kong 1 share - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games and
(HK$1) related services
BEERAA(F3) BE 1R (R REFRERRIABRY
(1%7)
Touch Fun Productions Limited (note 5)  Hong Kong 100 shares - 42% - - Development, publication and
(HK$100) promotion of electronic games
ERRERRAF (FizES) B 10081 FE - hRREEETEE
(100/%7)
Lasting Surplus Investment HK Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Tailor made IT solutions
(HK$10,000)
REAKXERAA B 10,0008 3 EHEAMRS R
(10,0007 7)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

35 MEAR(E)

Country of Particulars of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation issued and ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation  paid up capital interest 2017 interest 2016 Principal activity
ERELR BRIk EBREAEEGHA EBREFEEZLY
NRER EEREER BRRAFE (Z3-t%§) (ZB-1%§) TEER
Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
HE ik Ef i

Viva Star (note 6) BVI 50,000 shares - 100% - 100%  Property investment

of UST each

Viva Star (Fif3t6) ERRARS 50,0008 3 NEER

BRI1ZT
Stars Ventures Limited (note 7) Republic of 1 share - 100% - - Investment holding
Seychelles of US1 each
Stars Ventures Limited (Fi{£7) ETRANE 1R REZR
BR1ER
Notes: BteE
1. Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC law. 1. BEPEEEFMAITBERE
2. The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name 2. RXEREMRBE HINEBRERLE
of the entity is in Chinese. ELEN
3. Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2016 through the FS 3. RBEZE-ZZT—X"F+-A=+—HILFE
Acquisition. AIBFSEEE -
4. Mooff Games Limited is a subsidiary of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of 4. Mooff Games Limited 575 B 2 FF 2 &
the Group and, accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the BRAIZHWEBAR  AEERAREERR
Group's control over it. EHERHN—HEHBAR -
5. Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017. 5. RBE-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE
il AvAD

6. Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2016. 6. RBE_ZT—R"F+_A=+—BLFE
Wl o

7. Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2017 through the SV 7. RBEE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

Acquisition.

FEBUEESVE B UK EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following table lists out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI").
The summarised financial information presented below represents

35 KRR (&)
TR2IIGMESBEA SRR (3
PR |) MR B B A A AR
TOMBERBEERTAAMYH NS

the amounts before any inter-company elimination. %o
2017 2016 (note)
—E=—+t#F ZE—RF (M)
Shenzhen
Zhoufu Internet
Technology
Company Limited
FS Group FS Group ("SZZF")
YN = A8 4%
B ARAF]
FS Group FS Group (ERIINE D)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET FHT
NCl percentage FFERERA 40% 40% 49%
Non-current assets ERBEE 58,280 71,720 -
Current assets MENEE 33,109 1,316 -~
Current liabilities mEBEE (18,025) (4,930) =
Non-current liabilities EREAE (9.407) (11,032) =
Net assets BEFE 63,957 57,074 -
Carrying amount of NC| EE R IR E(E 25,573 22,185 =
Revenue W zs 35,144 111 365
Profit/(loss) for the year/period FEHM
w A (EiE) 6,882 (1,944) (2,578)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  4R& WA (E18)4Ea%58 6,882 (1,944) (2,642)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DhCE IEERR R
wA(E1E) 3,088 (831) (1,478)
Dividends paid to NCI R A 2= IR AR R A AR B - = -
Cash flows generated from/(used in) K& ZEE,(FTH)
operating activities, net MR REFHE 2,726 116 (859)
Cash flows used in investing REEBFTRAAN
activities, net REmEFE (3,093) (34) =
Cash flows from financing REEEFTEMNIRS
activities, net mE SR = - -
Note: The results and cash flows information of FS Group presented above Mz : U ERFFSEEsE2ERBESRENER

represent the post-acquisition results and cash flows from 25 October
2016 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2016.

The results and cash flows information of SZZF presented above represent
the results and cash flows from 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016 (date of

disposal of SZZF).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

36 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

(a) BABMRIEK

36 AATZHBER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRIZIKE 8 16
Investment in available-for-sale equity FEREELERE
securities 500 -
508 16
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries g N B 285,432 265,609
Deposits, prepayments and e AR H A EWGRIE
other receivables 364 201
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 14,764 2,395
300,560 268,205
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIB AR RIA 19,332 4,681
Other payables and accrued charges Hib AR R IERT &R 322 520
196,541 5,201
Net current assets RBEERE 280,906 263,004
NET ASSETS EEFHE 281,414 263,020
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A% A 43,546 36,288
Reserves Ex= 237,868 226,732
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 281,414 263,020

REFPREEER AR
F$H 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTEIR)
36 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36 XREZHMBER(RE)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual components (b) 757254 Rk 2015 Ho 8 B) 5545 1
of reserve during the year: T
Share Share Capital Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus losses Total
B RiEE EXRE E4ER 2itHR &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL
(note 27(b)i) ~ (note 27(b)(i))  (note27(b)fiii))
(HEa7(b)i)  (WEE270)i)  (PtEEa7(o)i))
At 1 January 2016 RZE-xE-F-H 20,160 274,640 2,261 1,609 (102,413) 196,257

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FESERZERTLEE

expense for the year - - - - (10,226) (10,226)
Issue of shares (note 27(a)(iv)) ~ E4TAR{A (HFiE27(a)(v) 16,128 60,861 = = S 76,989
16,128 60,861 - - (10,226) 66,763

At 31 December 2016 RZB-R"E+-R=t-H 36,288 335,501 2,261 1,609 (112,639) 263,020
At 1 January 2017 R=2-t%-B-H 36,288 335,501 2,261 1,609 (112,639) 263,020

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBERZEREE

expense for the year - - - - (9,876) (9,876)
Issue of shares (note 27(a)(v)) ~ E7R&k(H (B5E27(a)(v) 7,258 21,012 - - - 28,270
7,258 21,012 - - (9,876) 18,394

At 31 December 2017 RZE-+&+=-A=1-H 43,546 356,513 2,261 1,609 (122,515) 281,414

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

36 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(c) Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2017, the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee in respect of a loan made by a finance
company to a subsidiary (see note 22).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two subsidiaries of
the Company lease two motor vehicles under finance leases
at 3.5% — 4.8% per annum for a term of three to five years.
The Company has issued corporate guarantee in respect of
the finance leases with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,170,000 as at 31 December 2017.

Upon the completion of acquisition of FS Group, the
Company has issued a corporate guarantee in respect of
the Promissory Note issued by the FS Purchaser, which is a
subsidiary of the Company (see note 29(a)).

The fair value of these guarantees has not been provided for
in these consolidated financial statements as the directors
of the Company consider the amount involved to be
insignificant.

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

36 A B2 BER (&)

37

(c) HAREE
R_E—tF+ZA=+—80 K
AEIRFBRARMMNBAGREZ
EFRRHATER(AMEE22)

HE-_Z—+t&+=-_A=+—H1
FE - ARG MEHN B R RRE
BEAMEREE3I5%-48%HEM
WAE - BHIZERF - AQFIE
R =—ZE—+tF+=-A=+—HK
E{E#94,170,0008 T2 @AM ER
N BER o

REXRKBFSEBIE - ARRBA
NAIMBRABIFSER HET 2 AR
BETARER(ENE29G0)) -

ttEr e B mR T EIBHZFER
WRFE ARANAREZAR/M
BRHERATERK o

B ET & F R

fAEt RA G SR EEITHE - LIBEL
BEEMCEAR(BREERXRLER THRR
EMHORETR) BRI -

EEHGEVBRRE TE2EEIES
AARROER FEESRRERLEN
HE R EM A EERE  URME®RES
EEBRHXBERLBREDTE - TEG
AABEREN K2 - AEBEBE - X
REMHER S RERRG AV BRRER
R M RAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, the expected cash flows generated by the
intangible assets are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of future
software revenue and the amount of service costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of software revenue
and the amount of service costs, and discount rate.

Impairment loss on goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are set out in
note 13.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses. As
these deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax benefits can be utilised,
management'’s judgement is required to assess the probability
of future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is
constantly received and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered; conversely,
the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of
that deferred tax asset to be utilised. Details of the nature and
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed in note
24(b).

Impairment loss on loans receivable, interest

receivables and trade and other receivables
Impairment loss on loans receivable, interest receivables
and trade and other receivables is assessed and provided
based on management’s regular review of ageing analysis
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management when assessing
the credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual borrower/customer. Any increase or decrease in the
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts would affect
the Group's financial performance in future years.

(d)

&t e i (%)

EEBHEE
BIENIAE E RS MRS R EE
R - BRNETHIAEEEER
RIRBOGEH - LAE R ARBABIA
B|MHER TR - BEEEAMF
1t AR R ER 50 48 ) B 282 ) BE 1 1B H )
B o fit R ORER B F BE < IR IE R IR
BEWTWE - RIEIEREERET
Al WHERBEIMNEERIBERE -
Rz EEFRARE(ER B
B R A RS M B LA BB 40 3k
EMECHEEEZGNRR - B
BEEHRBEEMNLE MREERF
TBERMIEE24(b) B B -

BWERR - BUlF SR EYER
AR EBERRZBEBSR
FEAE TR~ W B Ko FE Y AR R K
Hip UK MERE - TIREE
B EE MERRE DN LA EHK D
B B RIE 2 AT g M A AT A e B
o NAHEERES BRzEE
SRR SR - EEESEH
REHE - RIZRMEBBOER
R BEEAEEERRBFDN
MERBABRTZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37 EEHEEH R E (&)

E=REWMIAZATE

(e) Fair value of Level 3 financial instruments (e)

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, their fair
value is determined using valuation techniques including
discounted cash flow model and binomial lattice model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

BENEEMBIRKRZEREER
EREBERTETAIREETSZ
WE - ZEFHECEETAERKR
BenBEA R ZBEABREERAS
BETH - ZFHETATIERR
BABEMS BB (ER) © fi
BETERBAZFEENER B
ERFAFERBURIRETRE

ZHE o ZFHEBEMERE &
RBEHEEREEEBRER - %%
AEBR<EBTAFESHTA
(BREEBAVZIAREBEE B
BITMSRAVEREZEARLRERR
EBAHZIBENRE) 22RAF

consideration payable for business combination). (ERs

The judgements include considerations of inputs such as
discount rate, risk-free interest rate, volatility and probability.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments (including
contingent consideration assets for business combination,
prepayment option embedded in promissory note issued and

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these

BeBERE

EEZFHRAMBBRRFZEAY  FEE
S ASERMZIRER - HEA KRR
B EREE—_T-—tF+-A=t—H
FERAER  RABRZESETB
BEAARA - U T RAEEREEEBEN

ZERR

consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ BRMBREEAFT SRIA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers' BRABREERNE SR ERPIUANIBA

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: Classification and ERYEREENELIR RIDERGH - ROEREN
measurement of share-based payment (&E3T) ol RS

transactions’

Amendments to HKAS 40 Investment property: Transfers of investment EROIERSI0% (LB  REVE : REVEER

property’
HKFRS 16 Leases? BROHRERRNE 165 HE?
HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments? AE (ARG KREREZES) MAHRENTRTIR

REE3HR

B-E-N\F-A-BRZEFRBENFE
HARR AR 2K ©
B-ZE-NF A BRZEAFHENFE
R -

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 1

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 38 —E2E—-tH+=A

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these new requirements
before their effective date and which transitional approach to take,
where there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation
of impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

[1]

=t+- $J§ 7 4 8 i
*ix&Zﬂ’“‘T - EAIR R
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N2 SR E A RIRB AR iEE S
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)}.5: °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") as follows:

o The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit
or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated as
FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security will
be recognised in other comprehensive income without
recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of
a financial liability designated as FVPTL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s own credit risk to
be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss”
model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances. This
new impairment model may result in an earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group's trade receivables, loans
receivable, interest receivables and other financial assets.
However, a more detailed analysis is required to determine
the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising

revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace

the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its consolidated
financial statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the

Group has identified the following areas which are likely to be
effected:
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in
note 2(y). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of
services is recognised over time, whereas revenue from the
sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identified 3 situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being transferred
over time;

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

() When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach
to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach, it
is possible that the point in time when revenue is recognised
may be earlier or later than under the current accounting
policy. However, further analysis is required to determine
whether this change in accounting policy may have a material
impact on the amounts reported in any given financial
reporting period.

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and makes
and adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost
of sales when the customers have a right of return. However,
the new requirement to recognise separately a return asset
for the products expected to be returned will impact the
presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts
of inventory for the expected returns, instead of recognising a
separate asset.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(l), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others as
the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their right and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)
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HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BEIRBEHRELERE16%  HE
(%)
HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee BRI EREENE1REEETER

of leases for properties which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 32,
at 31 December 2017 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$439,000
for properties, the majority of which is payable between 1

SEEAMNABARETYEGERES
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AFegrtEEsEERBEHYBME
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BrfE o S ANPERE32FTIREE - M- Z2—+t
F+ZA=1+—8 ' AEERTAHEEEL
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439,000/ 7T + HARREH AR HE A H

== 4
and 5 years after the reporting date. Some of these amounts f fiiﬂ;%j—f D.ﬁtﬁ Et‘j;ﬁ%
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with j?kqﬁ& ) J%16$5JT BTHFNA Ed{
BEEMRAEERE - WS AEEE AR

corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into
account the applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting
for any leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFPBRE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E2—tF —T—RF —T—HF —TNF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FET FET FET
RESULTS E
Revenue from continuing and 358 R B R IFK&E
discontinued operations ES & 64,464 34,459 41,268 21,412 14,278
(Loss)/profit before taxation MR RT (&), Sm (43,846) (40,351) (26,728) (1,420) 4,505
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigfi (Fx) HE® (1,889) 56 763 (735) 358
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE(EB),wHH (45,735) (40,295) (25,965) (2,155) 4,863
Attributable to: AT AL -
Owners of the Company RARHEB A (48,823) (37,986) (20,131) (1,978) 4,863
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M A 3,088 (2,309) (5,834) (177) =
(45,735) (40,295) (25,965) (2,155) 4,863
(Loss)/earnings per share S (EE) &F)
Basic (HK cents) BEARCEW) (4.50) (5.22) (4.84) (0.63) 1.75
Diluted (HK cents) BEOBI) N/ARER NATEA NATEA NATEA NATEA
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 405,730 451,871 273,819 168,323 77,523
Total liabilities BERRE (123,350) (153,427) (38,252) (40,355) (21,739)
282,380 298,444 235,567 127,968 55,784
Total equity attributable to RARHEE AEG
owners of the Company RS HBER 257,107 276,259 230,949 116,912 55,784
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR REZR 25,273 22,185 4,618 11,056 -
282,380 298,444 235,567 127,968 55,784
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